Public Document Pack

Resources Department
Town Hall, Upper Street, London, N1 2UD

AGENDA FOR THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE A
Members of Licensing Sub Committee A are summoned to a meeting, which will be held in
Committee Room 4, Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on 17 December 2019 at 6.30
pm.

Enquiries to
Tel
E-mail
Despatched

:
:
:
:

Jackie Tunstall
020 7527 3068
democracy@islington.gov.uk
9 December 2019

Membership

Substitute

Councillor Sheila Chapman (Chair)
Councillor Marian Spall (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Alice Clarke-Perry

All other members of the Licensing committee

Quorum: is 3 Councillors
Welcome : Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting.
Procedures to be followed at the meeting are attached.

A.

Formal matters

1.

Introductions and procedure

2.

Apologies for absence

3.

Declarations of substitute members

4.

Declarations of interest

Page

If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business:
 if it is not yet on the council’s register, you must declare both the
existence and details of it at the start of the meeting or when it
becomes apparent;
 you may choose to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest that is
already in the register in the interests of openness and transparency.
In both the above cases, you must leave the room without participating in
discussion of the item.
If you have a personal interest in an item of business and you intend to speak
or vote on the item you must declare both the existence and details of it at the
start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent but you may participate in
the discussion and vote on the item.
*(a) Employment, etc - Any employment, office, trade, profession or
vocation carried on for profit or gain.
(b)Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of your
expenses in carrying out duties as a member, or of your election; including
from a trade union.
(c) Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between
you or your partner (or a body in which one of you has a beneficial interest)
and the council.
(d) Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area.
(e) Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or
longer.
(f) Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in
which you or your partner have a beneficial interest.
(g) Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a
place of business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of
the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share
capital of that body or of any one class of its issued share capital.
This applies to all members present at the meeting.
5.

Order of Business

6.

Minutes of Previous Meeting

B.

Items for Decision

1-4
Page

1.

Simply Fresh, 6D and 6E Esther Anne Place, N1 1WL - New premises
licence

5 - 40

2.

Meat Liquor, N1, Collier's Garage, 133B Upper Street, N1 1QP - Premises
licence variation

41 - 72

3.

172 Goswell Road, EC1 7DT - New premises licence

73 - 96

4.

The Finest Bubble, 11 Shillingford Street, N1 2DP - Premises licence
variation

97 138

C.

Urgent non-exempt items
Any non-exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered
urgently by reason of special circumstances. The reasons for
urgency will be agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes.

D.

Exclusion of public and press
To consider whether, in view of the nature of the remaining items on the
agenda, any of them are likely to involve the disclosure of exempt or
confidential information within the terms of the Access to Information
Procedure Rules in the Constitution and, if so, whether to exclude the
press and public during discussion thereof.

E.

Urgent Exempt Items (if any)
Any exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently
by reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will be
agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes.

ISLINGTON LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES PROCEDURE FOR HEARING LICENSING APPLICATIONS UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003
INTRODUCTION

TIME
GUIDE

1) The Chair of the Sub-Committee will open the meeting and invite all members of the Sub-Committee,
Officers, the applicant and anybody making representations, including witnesses (who have been given
permission to appear) to introduce themselves.
2) The Chair will introduce the application and draw attention to the procedure to be followed as
detailed below.
CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATIONS:
N.B. The Sub-Committee have read all the papers. All parties should use this time to present
a summary of their key points and not to repeat the detail already provided in the report.
3) The Licensing Officer will report any further information relating to the application or
representations.
Where necessary the relevant parties will respond to these points during their submissions.
4) Responsible Authorities to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points
requested by the Authority. Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear.

10
mins

5) The Sub-Committee to question the responsible authorities on matters arising from their submission.
6) Interested Parties to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points
requested by the Authority. Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear.

10
mins

7) The Sub-Committee to question the objectors on matters arising from their submission.
8) The applicant to present the key points of their application, address the representations and clarify
any points requested by the Authority. Witnesses given permission by the Authority may appear.

10
mins

9) The Sub-Committee to question the applicants on matters arising from their submission.
10) If required, the Licensing Officer to clarify matters relating to the application and the Licensing
Policy.
11) The Chair may give permission for any party to question another party in the order of
representations
given above.
CASE SUMMARIES
12) Responsible Authorities
13) Interested parties
14) Applicant
DELIBERATION AND DECISION
15) The Sub-Committee may retire to consider its decision. The Committee Clerk and Legal Officer will
remain with the Sub-Committee.
16) If the Sub-Committee retires, all parties should remain available to provide further information or
clarification.
17) The chair will announce their decision giving reasons and any conditions to be attached to the
licence. All parties will be informed of the decision in writing.

2
mins
each

Agenda Item A6
London Borough of Islington
Licensing Sub Committee A - 22 October 2019
Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub Committee A held at Committee Room 4,
Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on 22 October 2019 at 6.30 pm.
Present:

Councillors:

Sheila Chapman, Satnam Gill and Marian Spall.

Councillor Sheila Chapman in the Chair
75

INTRODUCTIONS AND PROCEDURE (Item A1)
Councillor Chapman welcomed everyone to the meeting and officers and members
introduced themselves. The procedure for the conduct of the meeting was outlined.

76

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item A2)
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Alice Clarke-Perry.

77

DECLARATIONS OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item A3)
Councillor Satnam Gill substituted for Councillor Alice Clarke-Perry.

78

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item A4)
There were no declarations of interest.

79

ORDER OF BUSINESS (Item A5)
The order of business would be as the agenda.

80

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Item A6)
RESOLVED
That the minutes of the meeting held on the 22 August 2019 be confirmed as a correct
record and the Chair be authorised to sign them.

81

JUDGES DINING ROOM, OLD SESSIONS HOUSE, 24 CLERKENWELL
GREEN, EC1R 0NA - NEW PREMISES LICENCE (Item B1)
The licensing officer reported that opening hours would be until 11.30pm on Sunday to
Thursday. Following conditions agreed with the applicant, the noise team had withdrawn
their representation.
The applicant stated that this would be an art gallery space with a working studio and a
restaurant. The applicant’s representative stated that this application was a unique offering.
There had been a pre-application consultation with the Friends of Clerkenwell Green and
the licensing team. There were 50 proposed licensing conditions and additional conditions
proposed by the noise team which had been circulated. These included conditions which
stated that alcohol was ancillary to the use of the premises, that the licence would be
surrendered when Judges Dining Room vacated the premises, controlled use of the
terraces and noise conditions had been agreed. The hours fell within framework hours
detailed in licensing policies 5 and 6. The offer was consistent with most exceptions in the
cumulative impact policy. There were no concerns from the responsible authorities and
mostly positive representations had been received. There would be no licensable activities
1

Page 1

Licensing Sub Committee A - 22 October 2019
on the terraces after 9pm. A noise management plan and dispersal policy would be drawn
up in order that there would be no disturbance to residents. There would be some vertical
drinking as patrons would be standing up to look at art pieces but this was not a nightclub or
bar. The objections were not from the closest residents. He referred the Sub-Committee to
those representations in objection to the application for consideration.
The interested parties in support stated that they had been impressed with the renovation of
the building. They were pleased that the applicant had chosen this area and considered
that it was unlikely that issues would arise from this premises. They considered that the
applicants were conscientious business operators and strongly supported the application.
In response to questions, the Sub-Committee noted that alcohol was a very small part of the
business and off sales were conditioned and agreed with the police. The applicant agreed
that there be no regulated entertainment at any time on the roof terrace.
RESOLVED
1) That the application for a new premises licence, in respect of Judges Dining Room, Old
Sessions House, 24 Clerkenwell Green EC1R 0NA be granted to allow:a) The provision of films and the on and off sales of alcohol from 10am until 11pm on
Sunday to Thursday and from 10am until midnight Friday and Saturday.
b) The provision of late night refreshment from 11pm until midnight on Friday and
Saturday.
c) The above activities until midnight on Sundays immediately preceding Bank Holiday
Mondays.
d) Opening hours from 9am until 11.30pm Sunday to Thursday and from 9am until half
past midnight on Friday and Saturday.
2)

That conditions detailed on pages 75 to 79 of the agenda be applied to the licence with
the deletion of conditions 51-57.

3)

That the following additional conditions be applied to the licence:









The rooftop terrace B used for smoking purposes shall close at 23:00 Sunday to
Thursday and 00:00 on Friday and Saturday. The use of all other terraces for
licensable activities shall cease at 21:00 and they shall be cleared of all persons by
22:00.
A maximum of 15 guests will be permitted on Terrace B to smoke after 22:00. No
drinks shall be permitted after 22:00 on Terrace B.
There will be no regulated entertainment on the roof terraces at any time.
All moveable furniture shall be fitted with robust rubber buffers or similar on the feet
to ensure no sound audible at the nearest residential accommodation when moved.
There shall be staff supervision at all times when terraces are used by customers for
licensable activities.
Non-standard timings for the New Year celebrations shall not apply to the roof
terraces. The use of the roof terraces will be permitted until 01:00 only during New
Year celebrations. After 01:00 Terrace B will be permitted for smoking only with a
maximum of 15 guests only until the end of trading for New Years’ celebrations.
In the event of a noise complaint substantiated by authorised officers in relation to
amplified sound or customer noise from the premises or the terraces the licensee
shall reduce all levels of amplified sound until such works are carried out to contain
2

Page 2

Licensing Sub Committee A - 22 October 2019
amplified sound and customer noise and re-assess sound levels at the premises to
the satisfaction of the Pollution Team.
REASONS FOR DECISION
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material.
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing
Policy.
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policies 2 & 3. The premises fall
within the Clerkenwell cumulative impact area. Licensing policy 3 creates a rebuttable
presumption that applications for the grant or variation of premises licences which are likely
to add to the existing cumulative impact will normally be refused following the receipt of
representations, unless the applicant can demonstrate in the operation schedule that there
will be no negative cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing objectives.
The Sub-Committee noted that representations from the police and noise team had been
withdrawn following conditions being agreed.
The Sub-Committee heard evidence from the applicant that the premises would be an art
and gallery space with a working studio and restaurant in a secluded space. It would be a
unique offering in the area. The applicant’s representative confirmed that there had been
considerable pre-application consultation and that 50 licensing conditions had been agreed
together with additional conditions from the noise team. These conditions included alcohol
being ancillary to the use of the premises, the licence only being applicable to Judges
Dining Room Ltd, the control and use of the terraces and the control of noise associated
with the premises. The Sub-Committee heard from the applicant’s representative that the
application fell within the exceptions detailed in licensing policy 3, particularly in relation to
the mixed use of the premises, the framework hours sought and the wider cultural offer.
The Sub-Committee heard evidence from two interested parties speaking in support of the
application who stated that the applicants were conscientious business operators and that
the premises would bring life to the area and had been renovated to a very high standard.
The Sub-Committee concluded that the granting of the licence with the agreed conditions
would promote the licensing objectives. The Sub-Committee noted that the hours sought
were within the hours specified in licensing policy 5 and 6. The Sub-Committee was
satisfied that the operating schedule demonstrated high standards of management and that
the proposed use, with the extensive conditions agreed, meant that the premises would not
add to the cumulative impact. The Sub-Committee was satisfied that granting the
application with the hours and the conditions proposed was appropriate and proportionate
to the licensing objectives and in the public interest.
When making the decision, the Sub-Committee considered licensing policies 5 and 6 in
relation to framework hours, 2 and 3 in relation to cumulative impact and 7 and 8 in relation
to management standards.

82

ODEON, 419 HOLLOWAY ROAD, N7 6LJ - PREMISES LICENCE VARIATION
(Item B2)
The Sub-Committee noted that this item had been deferred.

3

Page 3

Licensing Sub Committee A - 22 October 2019

The meeting ended at 7.05 pm

CHAIR

4

Page 4

Agenda Item B1

t

1S LINGTON

Environment & Regeneration
Municipal Office, 222 Upper Street, N1 1XR
Report of: Service Director, Public Protection
Meeting of:

Date:

Ward(s):

Licensing Sub-Committee - A

17/12/2019

St. Mary's
Non-exempt

SUBJECT: PREMISES LICENCE NEW APPLICATION
RE: Simply Fresh, 6D & 6E, Esther Anne Place, London, N1
1WL.
1.

2.

Synopsis
1.1

This is an application for a new premise licence under the Licensing Act 2003.

1.2

The new application is to allow:


The sale by retail of alcohol, on & off supplies, Mondays to Sundays from 08:00
until 22:30; and



The premises to be open to the public, Mondays to Sundays from 07:00 until 22:45

Relevant Representations
Licensing Authority

No

Metropolitan Police

No: Conditions agreed

Noise

Yes

Health and Safety

No

Trading Standards

No

Public Health

No

Page 5

3.

Safeguarding Children

No

London Fire Brigade

No

Local residents

Yes: One local resident and Two local
residents’ associations.

Other bodies

No:

Background
3.1

4.

This a new premises licence application for a unit within the Islington Square
Development.

Planning Implications
4.1

None.

4.2

Planning comments:
The property in question is situated in Block A of the former North London Mail Centre
at 116-118 Upper Street, N1 1AA.
There appears to be no planning conflict in terms of the land use or hours of operation
pursuant to the decision notice (Ref.P2018/2465/S73).
To this end, there are no objections to the licence application.

5.

6.

Recommendations
5.1

To determine the application for a new premises licence under Section 17 of the
Licensing Act 2003.

5.2

These premises are located in the Angel and Upper Street Cumulative Impact Area
therefore the Licensing Committee will need to consider Licensing Policy 3, which states
that there is a presumption of refusal unless the Committee is satisfied that there will
be no adverse cumulative impact on the licensing objectives.

5.3

If the Committee grants the application it should be subject to:
i.

conditions prepared by the Licensing Officer which are consistent with the
Operating Schedule (see appendix 3); and

ii.

any conditions deemed appropriate by the Committee to promote the four
licensing objectives.(see appendix 3)

Reasons for recommendations
6.1

The Council is required to consider this application in the light of all relevant
information, and if approval is given, it may attach such conditions as appropriate to
promote the licensing objectives.

Page 6

Appendices:
Appendix 1:

application form;

Appendix 2:

representations;

Appendix 3:

suggested conditions and map of premises location.

Background papers:
None.

Final report clearance:

Signed by:
5/12/19
Service Director – Public Protection

Report author: Licensing Service
Tel: 020 75027 3031
E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk

Page 7

Date

Appendix 1

ffl' IS LI NGTO N

Islington
Application for a premises licence
Licensing Act 2003

For help contact
licensing@islington.gov.uk
Telephone: 020 7527 3031

* requ ired informat ion

Section 1 of 21

You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.
Not Currently In Use
I This is t he unique reference for t h is
I.__- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - ~ application generated by t he system.
I You can p ut what you want here to help you
ISIMPLYFRESH ISLINGTON SQUARE

System reference
Your reference

.__- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - ' track applications if you make lots of them. It
is passed to t he aut hority.
Put "no" if you are applying on you r own
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or
work for.

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?

r-

('

Yes

No

Applicant Details

* First name

IHNSD

* Family name

!LIMITED

* E-mail

lch ris@licensingsol utions.org.uk

Main telephone number

I~ - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - ~I Incl ude count ry code.

Other telephone number

I

I

[gj Indicate here if t he applicant would prefer not to be contacted by telephone
Is the applicant:
(e

Applying as a business or organisat ion, including as a sole t rader

r

Applying as an individual

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person w ithout any special legal struct ure.
Applying as an individual means t he
applicant is applying so the applicant can be
employed, or for some other personal reason,
such as following a hobby.

Applicant Business

Is the applicant's b usiness
registered in the UK with
Companies House?
Regist ration n umber
Business name
VAT n umber
Legal st atus

r-

Yes

('

No

Note: complet ing the Appl icant Business
section is optional in t his form.

111897460

1,. . - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - ,

If t he applicant's b usiness is registered, use
._H_N_S_D_
LI_M_IT_E_D_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ____, its registered name.

D I.__ _.

Put "none" if t he applicant is not registered

for VAT.

!Private Limited Company

Page 8
© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

Applicant's position in the
b usiness

luMITED COMPANY

Home country

The country where the applicant's
._u_n_it_e_d_K_in
_g_d_o_m
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ___,_ headquarters are.

I

I

Address registered w ith Companies House.

Registered Address

Building number or name

IGREENGATES LODGE

Street

I830A HARROGATE ROAD

District
City or town

I BRADFORD

County or administrative area

~--------------~

Postcode

IBD10 ORA

Country

!united Kingdom

Agent Details

* Fi rst name

lcHRIS

* Family name

!M ITCHENER

* E-mail

lch ris@licensingsol utions.org.uk

Main telephone number

144 0783 1 159 450

Incl ude country code.

Other telephone number

D

Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Are you:
(e'

An agent that is a business or organisation, including a sole trader

r

A private individual acting as an agent

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person w ithout any special legal structure.

Agent Business

Is your b usiness registered in
the UK with Companies
House?

(' Yes

(e'

No

Is your b usiness registered
outside the UK?

r

(e'

No

Business name
VAT n umber
Legal status

LJ

Yes

Note: completing the Appl icant Business
section is optional in this form.

LICENSING SOLUTIONS
I If your business is registered, use its
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ___,_ registered name.
I._
1566 5798 82

Put "none" if you are not registered for VAT.

Isole Trader
Page 9

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

Your posit ion in the b usiness lowNER
Home cou ntry

I
I The country where the headquarters of your

!united Kingdom

b usiness is located.

Agent Business Address
Build ing number or name

132

Street

lc HURCH ROAD

District

ILOCKS HEATH

City or town

isoUTHAMPTON

If you have one, this should be your official
address - that is an address req uired of you
by law for receiving commun ications.

County o r administrative area I HAMPSHIRE
Postcode

iso31 6LU

Country

!united Kingdom

I
I

Section 2 of 21
PREMISES DETAILS
I/we, as named in section 1, apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the p remises
described in section 2 below (the p remises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing authority
in accordance w ith section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Premises Address
Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or description of the p remises?

r-

Address

r

OS map reference

r

Description

Postal Address Of Premises
Build ing number or name

ls lMPLYFRESH FOOD HALL

Street

I6D-6E, 8 ESTHER ANNE PLACE

District

IISLINGTON SQUARE

City or town

IISLINGTON

County o r administrative area !LONDON
Postcode

IN11WL

Country

!united Kingdom

I

Telephone number

I

I

Non-domestic rateable
value of premises (£)

lo

I

I

Further Details

Page 10
© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Section 3 of 21
APPLICATION DETAILS

In w hat capacity are you applying for the prem ises licence?

D

An individual or individuals

~

A limited company/ li mited liability partnersh ip

D

A partnership (other than lim ited liability)

D

An un incorporated association

D

Other (for examp le a statutory corporat ion)

D

A recognised club

D

A charity

D

The proprietor of an educational establishment

D

A health service body
A person w ho is registered under part 2 of t he Care Standards Act

D

D
D

2000 (cl 4) in respect of an independent hospital in Wales
A person w ho is registered under Chapt er 2 of Part 1 of t he Health and
Social Care Act 2008 in respect of t he carrying on of a regulated
activity (within the meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital in
England
The chief officer of police of a police force in England and Wales

Confirm The Following

(g] I am carrying on or p roposing to carry on a business w hich involves
the use of the p remises for licensable activities

D

I am making the application p ursuant to a statut ory function

D

I am making the application p ursuant to a function discharged by
virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative

Section 4 of 21
NON INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS

Provide name and registered address of applicant in fu ll. Where appropriate give any regist ered number. In t he case of a
partnership or other joint venture (other than a body corporat e), give the name and address of each party concerned.
Non Individual Applicant's Name

Name

IHNSD LIMITED

Details

Regist ered number (where
app licable)

111897460

Description of applicant (for examp le partnership, company, unincorporated association etc)

Page 11

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

!PRIVATE LIMITED COMPANY
I

Address
Building number or name

IGREENGATES LODGE

I

Street

I830A HARROGATE ROAD

I

District

I

I

City or town

IBRADFORD

I

County or administrative area

I

I

Postcode

IBD10 ORA

Country

!united Kingdom

Contact Details

--

E-mail
Telephone number
Other telephone number

* Date of birth

I

I
I

I

I

[iJ / [iJ / Lil]
dd

* Nationality

I

mm

yyyy

IBRITISH

I

I
Add another applicant

Documents that demonstrate entitlement to
work in the UK

I

Section 5 of 21
OPERATING SCHEDULE
When do you want the
premises licence to start?

~

/ [!TI i i

dd

mm

If you wish the licence to be
valid only for a limited period,
when do you want it to end
dd

mm

2019

yyyy

D / D /I
yyyy

I
I

Provide a general description of the premises
For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which could be relevant to the
licensing objectives. Where you r application incl udes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for
consumption of these off- supplies you must include a description of where the place will be and it s proximity to the
premises.
GROUND FLOOR OF A MULTI FLOOR PROPERTY -GROUND FLOOR UNIT TO BE OPERATED AS A SIMPLYFRESH QUALITY
FRESH FOOD BASED FOOD HALL WITH AN OFF LICENCE SECTION AND A SEATED FOOD CONSUMPTION AREA SERVED BY
'STREET FOOD' VENDORS ALSO WITH AN ON LICENCE FACILITY.
FULL CCTV THROUGHOUT THE PREMISESWITH 28 DAY DIGITAL RECORDING AVAILABLE FOR POLICE AND LICENSING
Page
AUTHORITIES, QUALITY FRESH FOOD OFFERING IN STORE
WITH 12
AN OFF LICENCE OFFER FEATURING QUALITY BEERS WINES
© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...
ANLJ ::it-'IKI I :::, - NU ~ttK::> LAlJl:K::> UK ULJt:K::i A~UVI: ~.::i<ro A~V I u ~I: ::iUl-'t'Lll:LJ IN LAN::i UK 1-'LA::i 111.. tsU I I .t:::i I-KUM Uri-

SALES.
SEATED FOOD CONSUMPTION AREA SUPPLIED BY 'STREET FOOD' VENDORS WITH ALCOHOL SUPPLY FOR CONSUMPTION
ON THE PREMISES IN THIS AREA AS MARKED WITHIN THE RED BORDER ON THE DEPOSITED PLAN.
NO VERTICAL DRINKING TO BE ALLOWED ON THE PREMISES.
FU LL TRAINING REGIME IN USE FOR ALL STAFF WITH 6 MONTHLY REFRESHER TRAINING AND REAUTHORISATION.
SITE IS LOCATED IN A MULTIPLE SHOPPING ENVIRONMENT WITH ITS OWN SECURITY AND EXTERNAL CCTV CAMERAS.
ALCOHOL OFF SALES ARE SECONDARY TO THESHOP PROVISION WHICH IS OF ITSELF A BENEFIT TO LOCAL RESIDENTS AND
ON SALES ARE SECONDARY TO THE STREET FOOD VENDORS DINING PROVISION, PROVIDED TO SUPPORT AND COMPLETE
THE DINING EXPERIENCE.
THE DPS WILL BE VARIED TO SOMEBODY IN DAY TO DAY CONTROL OF THE OPERATION PRIOR TO TRADING COMMENCING.
If 5,000 or more people are
expected to attend t he
premises at any one time,
state the number expected to
attend

I

I

Section 6 of 21
PROVISION OF PLA VS
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing plays?
(' Yes

<-

No

Section 7 of 21
PROVISION OF FILMS
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing films?
(' Yes

(e No

Section 8 of 21
PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing indoor sporting events?
(' Yes

<-

No

Section 9 of 21
PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing boxing or wrestling entertainments?
(' Yes

(e No

Section 10 of 21
PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing live music?
(' Yes

r-

Section 11 of 21

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

No

Page 13

Continued from previous page...

PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing recorded music?

r-

(' Yes

No

Section 12 of 21
PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing performances of dance?

r-

(' Yes

No

Section 13 of 21
PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF
DANCE
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing anything similar to live music, recorded music or
performances of dance?

r-

(' Yes

No

Section 14 of 21
LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT
Will you be providing late night refreshment?

r-

(' Yes

No

Section 1S of 21
SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL
Will you be selling or supplying alcohol?

r-

Yes

('

No

Standard Days And Timings
MONDAY

Give t imings in 24 hour clock.

I (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
I of t he week when you intend the premises

Start 108:00

I

End 122:30

I

I

End

Start 108:00

I

End 122:30

I

I

I

End

I

I

Start 108:00

I

End 122:30

I

I

I

End

I

I

Start

I

to be used for t he act ivity.

TUESDAY

Start
WEDNESDAY

Start

Page 14
© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

THURSDAY
Start 108:00

I

End 122:30

I

I

I

End

I

I

Start 108:00

I

End 122:30

I

I

I

End

I

I

Start 108:00

I

End 122:30

I

I

I

End

I

I

Start 108:00

I

End 122:30

I

I

I

End

I

I

Start
FRIDAY

Start
SATURDAY

Start
SUNDAY

Start

Will the sale of alcohol be for consumption:

r

On the p remises

r

Off the premises

r-

Both

If the sale of alcohol is for consumption on
the premises select on, if the sale of alcohol
is for consu mption away from the p remises
select off. If the sale of alcohol is for
consumption on the p remises and away
from the premises select both.

State any seasonal variations
For example (but not excl usively) where t he activity will occur on add itional days during the summer months.

Non-standard timings. Where the premises w ill be used for the supply of alcohol at different times from those listed in t he
column on the left, list below
For example (but not excl usively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a part icular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

State the name and details of the individual whom you w ish to specify on t he
licence as premises supervisor

Name
First name

lc HRISTOPHER

Family name

!M ITCHENER

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Page 15

Continued from previous page...

Date of birth

[i] l [i] / 1•
dd

Enter the contact's address
Building number or name

mm

1

yyyy

•_____
-----_,

Street
District
City or town

County or administrative aretllllllll~ - - - - - - - - - - ~
Postcode
Country
Personal Licence number
(if known)
Issuing licensing authority
(if known)

!united Kingdom

-------------'

PROPOSED DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR CONSENT
How w ill the consent form of the proposed designated premises supervisor
be supplied to the authority?

r

Electronically, by the proposed designated premises supervisor

r.

As an attachment to this application

If t he consent form is already submitted, ask
Reference number for consent lcJM 1
form (if known)
.__ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ . the proposed designated premises
supervisor for its 'system reference' or 'your
reference'.

Section 16 of 21
ADULT ENTERTAINMENT
Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activit ies, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of t he
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children
Give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may give
rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example
(but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups etc gambling machines etc.

NONE

Section 17 of 21
HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC
Standard Days And Timings

Page 16
© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

MONDAY

Give t imings in 24 hour clock.

I (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
I of the week w hen you intend the premises

Start 107:00

I

End 122:45

I

I

End

Start 107:00

I

End 122:45

I

I

I

End

I

I

Start 107:00

I

End 122:45

I

I

I

End

I

I

Start 107:00

I

End 122:45

I

I

I

End

I

I

Start lo7:oo

I

End 122:45

I

I

I

End

I

I

Start lo7:oo

I

End 122:45

I

I

I

End

I

I

Start lo7:oo

I

End 122:45

I

I

I

End

I

I

Start

I

to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY

Start
WEDNESDAY

Start
THURSDAY

Start
FRIDAY

Start
SATURDAY

Start
SUNDAY

Start
State any seasonal variations

For example (but not excl usively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non standard t imings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the members and guests at different times from
those listed in the column on the left, list b elow
For example (but not excl usively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Page 17
© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

Section 18 of 21
LICENSING OBJECTIVES
Describe t he steps you intend to take to promote the fou r licensing objectives:
a) General - all fou r licensing obj ectives (b,c,d,e)
List here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.
EXTENSIVE CCTV SYSTEM FITTED WITH 28 DAY LIBRARY, ALARM SYSTEM FITTED, TRAINED STAFF WITH RECORDED
ALCOHOL TRAIN ING REGIME AND 6 MONTHLY REFRESHER TRAINING, INSTORE CHALLENGE SIGNAGE RE CHALLENGE 25
PROXY SALES AND PURCHASING UNDER THE INFLUENCE, CHALLENGE 25 IN PLACE, REFUSALS SYSTEM WITH REFUSALS
BOOK AND INCIDENT LOG IN PLACE, NO VERTICAL DRINKING ON THE PREMISES
b) The prevention of crime and disorder
CCTV SYSTEM, 24 HOUR RECORD, 28 DAY LIBRARY, INCIDENT LOG AND REFUSALS BOOK, NO OFF SALES OF BEERS LAGERS
OR CIDERS IN CANS OR PLASTIC BOTTLES ABOVE 5.5% ABV

c) Public safety
STAFF TRAINED IN FIRE SAFETY PROCEDURES AND THE USE OF FIRE SAFETY EQUIPMENT, FIRE FIGHTING EQUIPMENT
AVAILABLE

d) The prevention of public nu isance
STAFF TRAINED TO DEAL WITH SITUATIONS

e) The protection of children from harm
CHALLENGE 25, FULL ALCOHOL TRAINING REGIME IN PLACE WITH 6 MONTHLY REFRESHER TRAINING, CHALLENGE SIGNAGE
AND REFUSALS BOOK AND INCIDENT LOG

Section 19 of 21
NOTES ON DEMONSTRATING ENTITLEMENT TO WORK IN THE UK

Page 18
© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications from partnerships which are not
limited liability partnerships:
A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is resident in the UK who:
•
does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or
•
is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable
activity.
Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will become invalid if the holder
ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.
Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not subject to a condition preventing
them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. They do this in one of two ways: 1) by providing
with this application copies or scanned copies of the documents listed below (which do not need to be certified), or 2) by
providing their 'share code' to enable the licensing authority to carry out a check using the Home Office online right to work
checking service (see below).
Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK

•

An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the child of the
holder, is A British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right of abode in the UK [please see
note below about which sections of the passport to copy].

•

An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person named in the passport
as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

•

A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the Home Office to a national
of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.
A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a national of a European
Economic Area country or Switzerland.

•
•

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their
stay in the UK.

•

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is allowed to stay
indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK.

•

A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an endorsement
indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in
the UK, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

•

A birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK, when produced in combination with an official document
giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency
or a previous employer.

•

A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their
name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

•

A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in combination with an
official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a
Government agency or a previous employer.

Page 19
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

•

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is currently allowed to
work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity.

•

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to
the carrying on of a licensable activity.

•

A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a national of a European Economic
Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights or
residence.

•

A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home Office to the holder
with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not
subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity
when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance
number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

•

A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under regulation 18(3) or 20(2)
of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2016, to a person who is not a national of a
European Economic Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has
derivative rights of residence.

•

Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their permission to be in the UK
with the Home Office such as the Home Office acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or
reasonable evidence that the person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration
decision, such as an appeal or administrative review reference number.

•

Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but
who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in
the UK including:-

•
•

evidence of the applicant’s own identity – such as a passport,
evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family member – e.g. a marriage
certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and
•
evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of permanent residence in the UK or is one
of the following if they have been in the UK for more than 3 months:
(i)
working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer,
(ii)
self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank,
(iii)
studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of sufficient funds; or
(iv)
self-sufficient e.g. bank statements.
Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially independent must also provide
evidence that the European Economic Area national and any family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the
UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an S1, S2 or S3 form.
Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a passport, a copy of the
following pages should be provided:(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality;
(ii) any page containing the holder’s photograph;
(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature;
(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and
(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in the UK and is permitted to
work.

Page 20
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided.
Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us checking your immigration
status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be
determined until you have complied with this guidance.
Home Office online right to work checking service
As an alternative to providing a copy of the documents listed above, applicants may demonstrate their right to work by
allowing the licensing authority to carry out a check with the Home Office online right to work checking service.
To demonstrate their right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking service, applicants should include in
this application their 9-digit share code (provided to them upon accessing the service at https://www.gov.uk/prove-rightto-work) which, along with the applicant's date of birth (provided within this application), will allow the licensing authority
to carry out the check.
In order to establish the applicant's right to work, the check will need to indicate that the applicant is allowed to work in the
United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity.
An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have an immigration status that can
be checked online. The Home Office online right to work checking service sets out what information and/or documentation
applicants will need in order to access the service. Applicants who are unable to obtain a share code from the service
should submit copy documents as set out above.
Section 20 of 21
NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

Page 21
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

•

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience
does not exceed 500.

•

Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the
screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides
by age classification ratings.

•

Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided
that the audience does not exceed 1000.

•

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman
wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not
exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or
wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an
indoor sporting event.

•

Live music: no licence permission is required for:
a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell
alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not
licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises
of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,
and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local
authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

o
o
o
o

o

•

Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:
o
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol
for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
o
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.
o
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a
local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b)
the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority
concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

Page 22
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

•

Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the
audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance which amounts to adult entertainment remains
licensable.

•

Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, w ith no limit on
audience size for:
o

any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the entertainment is provided
by or on behalf of the local authority;

o

any entertainment taking place on the hospital p remises of the health care provider where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider;

o

any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is provided by or
on behalf of the school proprietor; and

o

any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) taking place at a travelling
circus, p rovided that (a) it takes place w ithin a moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and
(b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 consecutive days.

Section 21 of 21

PAYMENT DETAILS
This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card.
Premises Licence Fees are determined by the non&nbsp;domestic rateable&nbsp;value of the premises.
To find out a premises non domestic rateable value go to the Val uation Office Agency site at http://www.voa.gov.uk/
b usiness_rates/index.htm
Band A - No RV to £4300 £ 100.00
Band B - £4301 to £33000 £190.00
Band C - £33001 to £87000 £3 15.00
Band D - £87001 to £125000 £450.00*
Band E - £125001 and over £635.00*
*If the premises rateable value is in Bands Dor E and the p remises is p rimarily used for the consumption of alcohol on the
p remises then your are requi red to pay a higher fee
Band D - £87001 to £125000 £900.00
Band E - £125001 and over£ 1,905.00
There is an exemption from the payment of fees in relation to the provision of regulated entertainment at chu rch halls,
chapel halls or premises of a similar nature, village halls, parish or community halls, or other premises of a similar nature. The
costs associated w ith these licences w ill be met by central Government. If, however, the licence also authorises the use of
the p remises for the supply of alcohol or the provision of late night refreshment, a fee w ill be required.
Schools and sixth form colleges are exempt from the fees associated with the authorisation of regulated entertainment
where the entertainment is provided by and at the school or college and for the p urposes of the school or college.
If you operate a large event you are subject to ADDITIONAL fees based upon the number in attendance at any one time
Capacity 5000-9999 £1,000.00
Capacity 10000 -14999 £2,000.00
Capacity 15000-19999 £4,000.00
Capacity 20000-29999 £8,000.00
Capacity 30000-39999 £16,000.00
Capacity 40000-49999 £24,000.00
Capacity 50000-59999 £32,000.00
Capacity 60000-69999 £40,000.00
Capacity 70000-79999 £48,000.00
Capacity 80000-89999 £56,000.00
Capacity 90000 and over £64,000.00
* Fee amount (£)

1315.00

I

DECLARATION

Page 23
© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

[Applicable t o individual applicants only, including those in a partnership w hich is not a limited liab ility partnership] I

* understand I am not entitled t o be issued w ith a licence if I d o not have the entitlement t o live and work in the UK (or if I
am subject t o a condition preventing me from doing w ork relating t o the carrying on of a licensab le activity) and that my
licence will become invalid if I cease t o be entitled t o live and w ork in the UK (please read guidance note 15).
The DPS named in this applicat ion form is entitled t o w ork in the UK (and is not subject t o conditions preventing him or

* her from d oing work relating t o a licensable act ivity) and I have seen a copy of his or her proof of entitlement t o w ork, if
appropriat e (please see not e 15)

~

Ticking this box indicat es you have read and underst ood the above declaration

This sect ion should be complet ed by the applicant, unless you answ ered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent act ing on
behalf of the applicant?"

* Fu ll name

lcHRIS MITCHENER

* Capacity

IDULY AUTHORISED AGENT

* Dat e

[ill I
dd

~
mm

11

20 19

yyyy

Add anothe r signato ry

Once you're fini shed you need t o do the foll ow ing:
1. Save this form t o your computer by clicking file/save as...
2. Go back t o https://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/premises-l icence/islingt on/apply-1 t o upload this file and continue
with your applicat ion.
Don't forget t o make sure you have all your supporting d ocumentation t o hand.

IT IS AN OFFENCE LIABLE TO SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE
LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION
IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY
KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO
CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 1S OF THE IMMIGRATION,
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN
OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE
IS DISQUALIFIED

Page 24
© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

OFFICE USE ONLY

Applicant reference number

ls1MPLYFRESH ISLINGTON SQUARE

Fee paid
Payment provider reference
ELMS Payment Reference
Payment status
Payment authorisation code
Payment authorisation date
Date and t ime submitted
Approval deadli ne
Error message

□

Is Digitally signed
1

2.

J.

1

S.

2

Z

_a

9

1O 11

12

13

Page 25
© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Next >

STORE PLAN KEY
FIRE
EXTINGUISHER FIRE EXIT SIGN

EMERGENCY
LIGHTING

FIRE EXIT
SIGN

DDA
TOILET

EXTRACTOR FAN

EXTRACTOR FAN

EXTRACTOR FAN

Entrance
Hatch

Entrance
Hatch

Entrance
Hatch

Staff

Entrance
Hatch

Staff

EL

Back of
house

Water System

Warehouse
Racking

Warehouse
Racking
Warehouse
Racking

FIRE EXIT
SIGN

N
D

0

40

0

1

00

10

x

40

O

N

D
EL

G
O

LA

x

0

40

10
LL
A

0

x

E

LA

Warehouse
Racking
Warehouse
Racking

x

10

00
0
x
40
G
0
O
N
D
EL
LA

N

00

EL

D

EL

N

G

LA

0

O

G

0

40

10
0

G

EL

LA

D

N

G
O

00

x

40
0

10

Basket And
Bagging Unit
600x400
Till Unit
600x690

EL

600 x 500

LOWE REFRIGERATION SIENA 2
DOUBLE DOOR FREEZER
1320x640x1950

GONDELLA

COPYRIGHT NOTICE
THIS DRAWING IS THE PROPERTY OF SIMPLY FRESH
SUPERMARKETS LTD AND MUST NOT BE COPIED OR
REPRODUCED EXCEPT WITH THE EXPRESS
PERMISSION NOR MAY THE DESIGN OR ANY
INFORMATION SHOWN THEREON BE DISCLOSED TO
ANY THIRD PARTY
DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING. ALL DIMENSIONS
ARE IN MILLIMETERS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.
DIMENSIONS ON SITE AND ALL EQUIPMENT SIZES TO
BE VERIFIED PRIOR TO WORK COMMENCING.

SCALE
1:100

REVISION

DRAWN BY

V13
LICENSING
PLAN

M.BOAKES
SIMPLY FRESH
STORE DEVELOPMENT
MANAGER

FIRE EXIT VIA REAR
DOOR TO LOADING
AREA, AT REAR OF
BUILDING

Warehouse
Racking

E

40

D

G

00

x

D

O

0

10
0

N

Warehouse
Racking

LA

EL

D

0

40

10

LL
A

0

Bar
Storage Area

Warehouse
Racking

G
O

EL

40
0

Meat &
Deli Prep
area

Basket And
Bagging Unit
600x400
Till Unit
600x690

Till Area

Shop Back of house

LA
EL
N
D

0

O

40

G

x

x

0
80

G
O
N
D
EL
40
LA
0

x

x

O

00

LA

O

10
00

E

40

G
O

LA
N

x

O
N
D
40 EL
LA
0

x

10

D
EL

80
0

00

0

40

N

G

O

O

G

O

10
00

D

G

N
D

1000 x 500
GONDELLA

Self Checkout
Area

Warehouse
Racking

1

LA

EL

N

EL

EL

Warehouse
Racking

EL

D

40

O
N
D
40 ELL
0
A

N

O

G

10

4

G

G

40

x

LA

D
EL

x

Deli & Butchers Area

LA

EL

x

D

0

0

10
0

N

G

G

N

0

40

10

A

x

x

x

00

80
0

LA

0

00

10

00
0
x
40
G
0
O
N
D
EL
L

N

00

EL

D

N

G
O

G
O

0

1

D

40

40

N
D

D

N

O

x

80

LA

x

00

LL
A

O
N
D
40 EL
LA
0

EL

00
0

00

G

G

O

x

G

LA

0

00

10

0

10

EL
LA

x

N
D

O

40
0

80
0

x

A

EL
L

FIRE EXIT
SIGN

ARNEG MALAGA (REMOTE)
MEAT/DAIRY DISPLAY CASE
1250X780X2080

ARNEG 2500MM
SYDNEY 3

EL

DDA
TOILET

Warehouse
Racking

ARNEG MALAGA (REMOTE)
MEAT/DAIRY DISPLAY CASE
1250X780X2080

LO
JU WE
MB RE
O FR
SL IG
ID ER
ET AT
OP IO
FR N 2
EE M
ZE
R

10
00

LA

EL

D

1000 x 500
GONDELLA

Self Checkout
Left

Self Checkout
Right

Islington Square
Units G4A & G5A
Islington
Greater London
N11TU

EL

N

EL

0

EL

40

EXTERNAL
SEATING
RETAILERS NAME AND ADDRESS

LA

G
O

O
N
D
40 ELL
0
A

x

40
0

EL

0

G
x

x

N
D

80

80
0

O

O
N
D
40 ELL
0
A

80
0

G

G

LA

x

40
0

EL

80
0

x

O
N
D
40 ELL
0
A

40
0

LA

O
N
D
40 ELL
0
A

O

N
D

G
x

EL

cold room
deli/meat

D
EL

G
x

N

0

80
0

O

40

LA

80
0

80
0
x
40
G
O
0
N
D
EL
LA

80
0
G

LA

40
0

EL
LA

D
EL

G

x

D
EL

x

D

N

40
0

0

O
N

O

40

O
N
D
40 EL
LA
0

G

x

N

G

x

0
x

80
0

G

O

Warehouse
Racking

ARNEG MALAGA (REMOTE)
MEAT/DAIRY DISPLAY CASE
1250X780X2080

0

80

80
0

80

G

SEATING

LO
JU WE
MB RE
O FR
SL IG
ID ER
ET AT
OP IO
FR N 1
EE .5M
ZE
R

FIRE EXIT
SIGN

SEATING

LOWE REFRIGERATION

SEATING

SEATING

ARNEG MALAGA (REMOTE)
MEAT/DAIRY DISPLAY CASE
1250X780X2080

SEATING

SEATING

IT

EL

Plant Room

EL

Warehouse
Racking

EL

FIRE EXIT
SIGN

EL

Staff

EL

80
0

ENTRANCE
& EXIT

Incoming power

EXTRACTOR FAN
DDA
TOILET

Staff

Access Corridor

Bar Area

ARNEG 3750
SYDNEY 3

Page 26
FIRE EXIT
SIGN

Vendors
Cleaning/Storage
Room

SCALE BAR 1:100

Back
Office

Barista Coffee

EXTERNAL
SEATING

ENTRANCE
& EXIT

EL

EXTERTAL
SEATING
SEATING

SEATING

CCTV LOCATIONS

Welfare
Room

SEATING

FIRE EXIT
ROUTE

Warehouse
Racking

DATE

01/10/19

Appendix 2
•

ffl'

Rep 1

ISLINGTON

Islington Licensing Authority
Licensing Act 2003
REPRESENTATION FORM FROM RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES(Amended)
Responsible Authority Environmental Protection
Anne Brothers
Your Name
Job Title
Postal and email address
Contact tete0hone number
Name of the premises you are
making a reoresentation about
Address of the premises you are
maklna a reoresentatlon about

Noise Liaison Officer
222 Upper Street, London N1 1XR
anne.brothers@islinQton.Qov.uk
020 7527 3047
Simply Fresh
6D Esther Anne Place N1 1WL

Yes

Which of the four licensing
Objectives does your
representation relate to?

No

To prevent pubUc nuisance

Yes

Or

Suggested conditions that could be
added to the licence to remedy your
representation or other suggestions you
would like the Licensing Sub Committee
to take into account. Please use
separate sheets where necessary and
refer to checklist.

Please detail the evidence supporting your
representation. Or the reason for your
representation.
Please use separate sheets if necessary
There is residential accommodation in close vicinity
to this premises. No noise management measures
are specified in the operating schedule .

•

Noise or vibration must not emanate from
the premises so as to cause a nuisance to
nearby properties.

•

The outside seating area shall be cleared of
customers by 21 :30 and service to the
outside seating area shall cease at 21 :00.

•

In the event of noise nuisance from the
outside seating area substantiated by
authorised officers, the outside seating will
close at an earlier time.

•

Bottling out from the premises is prohibited
between 20:00 hours and 08:00 hours.

•

No vertical drinking

•

Any music shall be restricted to ambient
background levels of sound.

•

In the event of a noise/nuisance complaint
substantiated by an authorised officer, the
licensee shall take appropriate measures in
order to prevent any recurrence.

•

Drinks shall not be taken outside in open
containers for consumption apart from to
customers seated in any authorised area for

Page 27

S:\Publlc Proteclion\Comm\Licences\PREM•LI CENSING\E\EslherAnnePlace--6D&E\Nolse lssues\NoiseRepNOV19.doc.BA
P~e1~2

external tables and chairs.

Signed:

~ \@-vwUA,J

•

All outside furniture shall be frtted with
rubber pads to the bottom of the legs to
minimise noise when moved.

•

The last sale of alcohol for on sales shall be
30 minutes before the statec{ closing time.

•

There shall be no deliveries of licensable
goods or loading or unloading of ve.h icles
between 20:00 and 08:00, Mondays to
Saturdays, and no deliveries or collections
on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

· •

Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied for
consumption on the premises otherwise
than to persons purchasing food there and
for consumption by such a person as an
ancillary to his/her meal

Date:3 December 2019 _ _ _ __

Please return this form along with any additional sheets to: Licensing Support Team,
Public Protection, 222 Upper Street, London N1 1XR or email to
licensing@islington.gov.uk

This form must be returned within the Statutory Period. For more details
please check with the Licensing Support Team on 020 7527 3031

Page 28

Rep 2

19 November 2019
Licensing Service
Public Protection Division
222 Upper Street
London
N1 1XR
Dear Sir/Madam
Licensing Application Ref: WK/190033208
Simply Fresh Food Hall, 6D/6E Esther Anne Place, Islington, London N1 1WL
Representation on behalf of the Moon Street & Studd Street Residents’ Association
Background
The application is for the supply of alcohol, for consumption on and off the premises
The hours applied for the sale of alcohol are:
Monday – Sunday 08:00 – 22:30
Opening times: 07:00 – 22:45
The applicant states as follows:
Ground floor unit to be operated as a Simply Fresh quality fresh food based hall with
an off licence section and a seated food consumption area served by ‘street food’
vendors with an on licence facility. Alcohol off sales are secondary to the shop provision and on sales are secondary to the street food vendors dining provision.
Representation
Moon Street and Studd Street are in the centre of the Angel and Upper Street
Cumulative Impact Area and are in very close proximity to the Islington Square
development. This is an area already considered to be saturated by Islington
Council (Licensing Policy 2018-2022), where residents have reported significant noise, nuisance and disturbance from bars and restaurants.
We request the committee to refuse the application having regard to Islington
Licensing Policies 1 (planning consent for intended use and hours of operation), 2 (cumulative impact), and 21 (public nuisance including smoking, drinking or eating outside).

Page 29

•

This unit has A 1 use and as at least half the front of house floor area is devoted to seated food consumption which is an A3 use this can not be treated
as incidental to the A 1 use.

•

The applicant has not directly addressed the issue of cumulative impact. The
submitted plan shows 40 seats at tables inside, 12 seats at tables outside and
11 at the bar, so the exception for premises with less than 50 seats does not
apply. The sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises is not incidental
to specialist retailing - the retai l part of the premises is a typical convenience
store/off-licence.

•

The licensing plan includes two outsid e tables which are not strictly part of the
demised area. Their use should be subject to the same conditions as the
other Esther Anne Place A3 units with outside tables, namely that the tables
shall be cleared and made unusable from 22:00 each day.

We would urge the Committee to ensure that that the applicants are reminded
that after 20.00 all customers should disperse via the Upper Street exit and
their staff should remind customers of this requirement and signs to this effect
should be displayed in the premises.
This is in accordance with the cond ition imposed on the licence granted to Unit G7A,
6G Esther Anne Place, reference WK170023702 to red uce the impact on local residents incl uding Studd Street and Moon Street reside nts who frequently suffer noise
and disturbance from customers leaving local licensed premises.

Respectfully submitted on behalf of the Moon Street & Studd Street Residents' Association.

-

And supported by the following individ uals:

Page 30

Page 31

Rep 3
Licensing Application Ref: WK/190033208
Simply Fresh Food Hall, 6D/6E Esther Anne Place, Islington, London N1 1WL
Representation on behalf of the Almeida Street Residents’ Association
Background
The application is for the supply of alcohol, for consumption on and off the premises
The hours applied for the sale of alcohol are:
Monday – Sunday 08:00 – 22:30
Opening times: 07:00 – 22:45
The applicant states as follows:
Ground floor unit to be operated as a Simply Fresh quality fresh food based hall with an off licence
section and a seated food consumption area served by ‘street food’ vendors with an on licence
facility. Alcohol off sales are secondary to the shop provision and on sales are secondary to the
street food vendors dining provision.

Representation
We object to the grant of an alcohol licence without additional conditions
on public policy grounds and public nuisance. The application premises
are within a cumulative impact area and thus the presumption is that a
licence should be refused.
We therefore request the committee to refuse the application having
regard to Islington Licensing Policies 1 (planning consent for intended
use and hours of operation), 2 (cumulative impact), and 21 (public
nuisance including smoking, drinking or eating outside)
•

This unit has A1 use and as at least half the front of house floor area is devoted
to seated food consumption which is an A3 use this cannot be treated as
incidental to the A1 use. The applicant should apply for mixed A1/A3 use for
the unit before the licence application is determined.

•

The applicant has not directly addressed the issue of cumulative impact. The
submitted plan shows 40 seats at tables inside, 12 seats at tables outside and
11 at the bar, so the exception for premises with less than 50 seats does not
apply. The sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises is not incidental
to specialist retailing – the retail part of the premises is a typical convenience
store/off-licence.

•

The licensing plan includes two outside tables which are not strictly part of the
demised area. Their use should be subject to the same conditions as the other
Esther Anne Place A3 units with outside tables, namely that the tables shall be
cleared and made unusable from 22:00 each day.

•

Public nuisance would be caused by anyone smoking at these tables, which
should not be permitted. There are residential flats being fitted out
immediately above the premises, now that the first floor layout on the east
side of Block A has been amended from B1 to residential.

Page 32

In the event that the licence application is granted we would urge the
committee to consider the following conditions which should be added to
those offered by the applicant– these are standard provisions that apply to
other Islington Square A3 units
▬ Substantial food and suitable beverages other than alcohol, including
drinking water, shall be available during the whole of the permitted
hours in all parts of the premises where intoxicating liquor is sold or
supplied for consumption on the premises
▬ No smoking shall be permitted at the outside tables

▬ The outside tables shall be cleared of patrons and rendered unusable by
22:00
▬ Customers leaving the premises after 20:00 shall be directed to leave
by the arcades leading to Upper Street, staff shall remind customers of
this requirement and signs to this effect shall be displayed in the
premises. This is in accordance with the condition imposed on the
licence granted to Unit G7A, 6G Esther Anne Place , reference
WK170023702 to reduce the impact on local residents
Respectfully submitted on behalf of the Almeida Street Residents’ Association

The following people support this letter of objection:

Page 33

Rep 4

19 November 2019
Licensing Service
Public Protection Division
222 Upper Street
London
N1 1XR
Dear Sir/Madam
Licensing Application Ref: WK/190033208
Simply Fresh Food Hall, 6D/6E Esther Anne Place, Islington, London N1 1WL
Background
The application is for the supply of alcohol, for consumption on and off the premises
The hours applied for the sale of alcohol are:
Monday – Sunday 08:00 – 22:30
Opening times: 07:00 – 22:45
The applicant states as follows:
Ground floor unit to be operated as a Simply Fresh quality fresh food based hall with
an off licence section and a seated food consumption area served by ‘street food’
vendors with an on licence facility. Alcohol off sales are secondary to the shop provision and on sales are secondary to the street food vendors dining provision.
Representation
Moon Street is in the centre of the Angel and Upper Street Cumulative Impact
Area and are in very close proximity to the Islington Square development. This
is an area already considered to be saturated by Islington Council (Licensing
Policy 2018-2022), where residents have reported significant noise, nuisance
and disturbance from bars and restaurants.
I request the committee to refuse the application having regard to Islington Licensing Policies 1 (planning consent for intended use and hours of operation),
2 (cumulative impact), and 21 (public nuisance including smoking, drinking or
eating outside).

Page 34

•

This unit has A1 use and as at least half the front of house floor area is devoted to seated food consumption which is an A3 use this cannot be treated
as incidental to the A1 use.

•

The applicant has not directly addressed the issue of cumulative impact. The
submitted plan shows 40 seats at tables inside, 12 seats at tables outside and
11 at the bar, so the exception for premises with less than 50 seats does not
apply. The sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises is not incidental
to specialist retailing – the retail part of the premises is a typical convenience
store/off-licence.

•

The licensing plan includes two outside tables which are not strictly part of the
demised area. Their use should be subject to the same conditions as the
other Esther Anne Place A3 units with outside tables, namely that the tables
shall be cleared and made unusable from 22:00 each day.

I would urge the Committee to ensure that that the applicants are reminded

that after 20.00 all customers should disperse via the Upper Street exit and
their staff should remind customers of this requirement and signs to this effect
should be displayed in the premises.
This is in accordance with the condition imposed on the licence granted to Unit G7A,
6G Esther Anne Place, reference WK170023702 to reduce the impact on local residents including Moon Street residents who frequently suffer noise and disturbance
from customers leaving local licensed premises.
Yours faithfully

Page 35

Appendix 3
Suggested conditions of approval consistent with the operating schedule
1.

Staff shall be trained in all relevant areas connected to the sale of alcohol. Staff will be
subject to refresher training every 6 months recorded alcohol training regime and 6 monthly
refresher training.

2.

Staff shall be trained in fire safety procedures and the use of fire safety equipment,
appropriate firefighting equipment will be available.

Conditions agreed with the Metropolitan Police
3.

4.

5.

CCTV shall be installed, operated, and maintained, to function all times that the premises is
open for licensable activities. Said CCTV will comply with the following criteria:
a.

The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure that the
system is working properly and that the date and time are correct;

b.

A record of these checks, showing the date and name of the person checking, will be
kept and made available to the police or other authorised officer on request;

c.

The Police will be informed if the system will not be operating for longer than one day of
business for any reason;

d.

One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a clear, full
length image of anyone entering;

e.

The system will provide full coverage of the interior of the premises and any exterior part
of the premises accessible to the public;

f.

The system will record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped;

g.

The system will be specified so as to operate satisfactorily regardless of lighting
conditions;

h.

During opening hours, at least 1 member of staff on duty will be able to operate the
system sufficiently to allow Police or authorised Council officers to view footage on
request;

i.

Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days; and

j.

Footage will be provided free of charge to the police or other authorised officers upon
request (subject to the Data Protection Act 1998) within 24 hours of any request.

An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available upon request to the police
or an authorised officer, which will record:
a.

Any and all allegations of crime and/or disorder reported at the venue;

b.

Any and all complaints received by any party;

c.

Any faults in the CCTV system;

d.

Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service;

e.

Any and all ejections of patrons;

f.

Any and all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons.

All refusals of sales of alcohol are recorded in a refusals book which shall be kept at the
premises and made available upon request to the Police or an authorised officer, which shall

Page 36

record all sales of alcohol which have been refused, the date and time of refusal, the product
refused, a description of the customer and the name and signature of the cashier.
6.

7.

In the event that crime or serious disorder is, or appears to have been, committed on the
premises, the management will immediately ensure that:
a.

The police and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service, are called
immediately;

b.

As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to apprehend any
identified suspects pending the arrival of the police;

c.

As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to preserve any
identified crime scene pending the arrival of the police.

The premises licence holder shall ensure that all sales staff receive appropriate training in
relation to:
a.

Managing conflict; and

b.

health and safety of the public and staff.

Training documents shall be signed and dated and will be held in a suitable hard-copy log, to
be made available to a Police Officer or Council Officer upon request. Said records shall be
retained for at least 12 months.
8.

The licensee shall ensure that the management and staff prevent the admission of, and
ensure the prompt departure from the premises of, any and all drunk and or disorderly people
or other people displaying signs of other substance use, without causing any disorder.

9.

The premises shall operate the ‘Challenge 25’ proof of age scheme where:
a.

All staff will be fully trained in its operation; and

b.

Only suitable forms of photographic identification, such as passport or UK driving licence,
or holograph equipped ‘PASS’ scheme cards, will be accepted.

10.

There shall be no vertical drinking permitted anywhere on the premises at any time.

11.

There shall be no off-sales of any beers, lagers, or ciders above 5.5% abv in cans or plastic
containers.

12.

There shall be a minimum of 2 members of staff on duty at all times the premises is open for
licensable activities.

Conditions proposed by the Council’s Noise Service
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.

Noise or vibration must not emanate from the premises so as to cause a nuisance to nearby
properties.
The outside seating area shall be cleared of customers by 21:30 and service to the outside
seating area shall cease at 21:00.
In the event of noise nuisance from the outside seating area substantiated by authorised
officers, the outside seating will close at an earlier time.
Bottling out from the premises is prohibited between 20:00 hours and 08:00 hours.
Any music shall be restricted to ambient background levels of sound.
In the event of a noise/nuisance complaint substantiated by an authorised officer, the licensee
shall take appropriate measures in order to prevent any recurrence.
Drinks shall not be taken outside in open containers for consumption, apart from to customers
seated in any authorised area for external tables and chairs.

Page 37

20.
21.

All outside furniture shall be fitted with rubber pads to the bottom of the legs to minimise noise
when moved.
The last sale of alcohol for on sales shall be 30 minutes before the stated closing time.

22.

There shall be no deliveries of licensable goods or loading or unloading of vehicles between
20:00 and 08:00, Mondays to Saturdays, and no deliveries or collections on Sundays or Bank
Holidays.

23.

Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied for consumption on the premises otherwise than to
persons purchasing food there and for consumption by such a person as an ancillary to his/her
meal

Page 38

8/6/2019
Title: LocalAreaMap-UnitG16

Page 39
Printed By:
RO RO
Printed On:
06-08-2019

OSM

1/1

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item B2

t

1S LINGTON

Environment & Regeneration
Municipal Office, 222 Upper Street, N1 1XR
Report of: Service Director, Public Protection
Meeting of:

Date:

Ward(s):

Licensing Sub-Committee - A

17/12/2019

St. Mary's
Non-exempt

SUBJECT: PREMISES LICENCE VARIATION APPLICATION
RE: Meat Liquor N1, Collier's Garage, 133B Upper Street,
London, N1 1QP.
1.

Synopsis
1.1

This is an application for the variation of a premise licence under the Licensing Act 2003.

1.2

The premises currently holds a licence allowing:

1.3



The sale by retail of alcohol, on & off supplies, Mondays to Saturdays from 08:00
until 23:00 and Sundays from 10:00 until 22:30; and



The premises to be open to the public, Mondays to Saturdays from 08:00 until
23:00 and Sundays from 10:00 until 22:30.

The variation application is seeking to:


Vary the terminal hour for the provision of alcohol on Thursdays to Saturdays from
23:00 until 23:45, no change proposed for other days;



Allow the provision of late night refreshment, Thursdays to Saturdays from 23:00
until 00:00; and



Vary the terminal hour for the premises to be open to the public on Thursdays to
Saturdays from 23:00 until 00:00.

Page 41

2.

3.

Relevant Representations
Licensing Authority

No

Metropolitan Police

Yes

Noise

No

Health and Safety

No

Trading Standards

No

Public Health

No

Safeguarding Children

No

London Fire Brigade

No

Local residents

Yes: One local resident.

Other bodies

No:

Background
3.1

3.2

Brief licensing history:


The premises licence was initially granted on 11th March 2013;



25th November 2014, the current licensee, Meatailer Limited, transferred onto the
licence;



26th November 2015, Minor variation approved for a layout change appropriate for
the new business model;



30th May 2019, Scott Collins named as current Designated Premises Supervisor.

20th November 2019, the licensee’s representative provided a response, see appendix 3,
to be forwarded the local resident for their consideration in regards to their outstanding
representation.
At the time of writing this report the resident has yet to respond to this correspondence.

4.

Planning Implications
4.1

The Planning & Development section have the following comments to make in relation
to the above application:
The property is part listed (the toilets and storage area are within the rear of listed
building number 133 Upper Street, and it is located within the Upper Street (North)
Conservation Area (CA19).
The property has an approved and established restaurant use (A3). Key conditions
relating to approved hours of use are in bold in the planning history below. It is noted

Page 42

that the proposed licenced hours do not match the conditioned hours of the approved
planning permission.
CONDITION 8: The Class A3 use hereby approved shall not operate except
between the hours of 08.00 and 23.00 on any day.
REASON: To ensure that the proposed development does not have an adverse impact
on neighbouring residential amenity in accordance with CS policies 9 & 12 of the
Islington Unitary Development Plan 2002.
There are no open enforcement cases in relation to the property.
5.

6.

Recommendations
5.1

To determine the application for a variation of the premises licence under Section 34 of
the Licensing Act 2003.

5.2

These premises are located in the Angel and Upper Street Cumulative Impact Area
therefore the Licensing Committee will need to consider Licensing Policy 3, which states
that there is a presumption of refusal unless the Committee is satisfied that there will
be no adverse cumulative impact on the licensing objectives.

5.3

If the Committee grants the application it should be subject to:
i.

conditions prepared by the Licensing Officer which are consistent with the
Operating Schedule (see appendix 5); and

ii.

any conditions deemed appropriate by the Committee to promote the four
licensing objectives (see appendix 5).

Reasons for recommendations
6.1

The Council is required to consider this application in the light of all relevant
information, and if approval is given, it may attach such conditions as appropriate to
promote the licensing objectives.

Appendices:
Appendix 1:

application form;

Appendix 2:

current premises licence;

Appendix 3:

representations;

Appendix 4:

response to outstanding representation;

Appendix 5:

suggested conditions and map of premises location.

Page 43

Background papers:
None.

5/12/19

Final report clearance:

Signed by:
Service Director – Public Protection

Report author: Licensing Service
Tel: 020 75027 3031
E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk

Page 44

Date

Appendix 1

1i 11SUN GTON

Islington
Application to vary a premises licence
Licensing Act 2003

For help contact
licensing@islington.gov.uk
Telephone: 020 7527 3031

* required information

Section 1 of 18
You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.
This is the unique reference for this
application generated by the system.

System reference

Not Currently In Use

Your reference

MB/SC/MEAT/ISLINGTON/VAR/FULL

Put "no" if you are applying on your own
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or
work for.

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?

r.

Yes

You can put what you want here to help you
track applications if you make lots of them. It
is passed to the authority.

No

Applicant Details
* First name

MEATAILER

* Family name

LIMITED

* E-mail

mbrowning@balaw.co.uk
Include country code.

Main telephone number
Other telephone number

Indicate here if the applicant would prefer not to be contacted by telephone
Is the applicant:

r.
r

Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader
Applying as an individual

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.
Applying as an individual means the
applicant is applying so the applicant can be
employed, or for some other personal reason,
such as following a hobby.

Applicant Business
Is the applicant's business
registered in the UK with
Companies House?

r.

Yes

r

No

Note: completing the Applicant Business
section is optional in this form.

Registration number

07555270

Business name

MEATAILER LIMITED

If the applicant's business is registered, use
its registered name.

NONE

Put "none" if the applicant is not registered
for VAT.

VAT number
Legal status

-

Private Limited Company

Page 45
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

Applicant's position in the
business

APPLICANT COMPANY

Home country

United Kingdom

The country where the applicant's
headquarters are.

Registered Address

Address registered with Companies House.

Building number or name

FIRST FLOOR

Street

50-51 BERWICK STREET

District
City or town

LONDON

County or administrative area
Postcode

W1F 8SJ

Country

United Kingdom

Agent Details
* First name

MARK

* Family name

BROWNING

* E-mail

mbrowning@balaw.co.uk

Main telephone number

07956415441

Include country code.

Other telephone number

□ Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone
Are you:

rr

An agent that is a business or organisation, including a sole trader
A private individual acting as an agent

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.

Agent Business
Is your business registered in
the UK with Companies
House?

r-

Yes

Registration number

5135281

Business name

BA LAW LIMITED

VAT number
Legal status

-

r

No

If your business is registered, use its
registered name.
Put "none" if you are not registered for VAT.

NONE
Private Limited Company

Page 46
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Note: completing the Applicant Business
section is optional in this form.

Continued from previous page...

Your position in the business

DIRECTOR

Home country

United Kingdom

The country where the headquarters of your
business is located.

Agent Registered Address

Address registered with Companies House.

Building number or name

BA LAW

Street

59 PELHAM STREET

District
City or town

LONDON

County or administrative area
Postcode

SW7 2NJ

Country

United Kingdom

Section 2 of 18
APPLICATION DETAILS
This application cannot be used to vary the licence so as to extend the period for which the licence has effect or to
vary substantially the premises to which it relates. If you wish to make that type of change to the premises licence,
you should make a new premises licence application under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.
I/we, as named in section 1, being the premises licence holder, apply to vary a premises licence under section 34 of the
Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in section 2 below.
* Premises Licence Number

LN/14075-300519

Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or description of the premises?

r-

Address

r

OS map reference

Description

Postal Address Of Premises
Building number or name

MEAT LIQUOR N1

Street

133 UPPER STREET

District
City or town

LONDON

County or administrative area
Postcode

N1 1QP

Country

United Kingdom

Premises Contact Details
Telephone number

0207 704 2204

Page 47
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

Non-domestic rateable
value of premises (£)

I64,000

I

Section 3 of 18
VARIATION
Do you want the proposed
variation to have effect as
soon as possible?

r-

r

Yes

No

Do you want the proposed variation to have effect in relation to the
introduction of the late night levy?

r Yes
If your proposed variation
would mean that 5,000 or
more people are expected to
attend the premises at any
one time, state the number
expected to attend

r-

No

I

You do not have to pay a fee if the only
purpose of the variation for which you are
applying is to avoid becoming liable to the
late night levy.

I

Describe Briefly The Nature Of The Proposed Variation
Describe the premises. For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which
could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to
provide a place for consumption of these off-supplies, you must include a description of where the place will be and its
proximity to the premises.
This is an application to increase the regulated hours on a Thursday, Friday and Saturday to 2345 for the sale by retail of
alcohol and to add late night refreshment on the same days to allow for 15 minutes drinking up and finishing meals. Also
to remove condition 8 of the Licence (which repeats condition 1).
Section 4 of 18
PROVISION OF PLAYS
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will the schedule to provide plays be subject to change if this application to
vary is successful?

r

Yes

r-

No

Section 5 of 18
PROVISION OF FILMS
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will the schedule to provide films be subject to change if this application to
vary is successful?

r

Yes

r-

No

Section 6 of 18
PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Page 48

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Continued from previous page...

Will the schedule to provide indoor sporting events be subject to change if
this application to vary is successful?

r

Yes

r-

No

Section 7 of 18
PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will the schedule to provide boxing or wrestling entertainments be subject
to change if this application to vary is successful?

r

Yes

r-

No

Section 8 of 18
PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will the schedule to provide live music be subject to change if this
application to vary is successful?

r

Yes

r-

No

Section 9 of 18
PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will the schedule to provide recorded music be subject to change if this
application to vary is successful?

r

Yes

r-

No

Section 10 of 18
PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will the schedule to provide performances of dance be subject to change if
this application to vary is successful?

r

Yes

r-

No

Section 11 of 18
PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF
DANCE
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will the schedule to provide anything similar to live music, recorded music or
performances of dance be subject to change if this application to vary is
successful?

r

Yes

r-

No

Section 12 of 18
PROVISION OF LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT

Page 49
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

Will the schedule to provide late night refreshment be subject to change if
this application to vary is successful?

r-

Yes

No

Standard Days And Timings
MONDAY
Start

End

Start

End

Start

End

Start

End

Start

End

Start

End

Start 23:00

End 00:00

Start

End

Start 23:00

End 00:00

Start

End

Start 23:00

End 00:00

Start

End

Start

End

Start

End

Provide timings in 24 hour clock
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY

WEDNESDAY

THURSDAY

FRIDAY

SATURDAY

SUNDAY

Will the provision of late night refreshment take place indoors or outdoors or
both?

r

Indoors

r

Outdoors

r-

Both

Where taking place in a building or other
structure select as appropriate. Indoors may
include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

Page 50
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

I
State any seasonal variations.
For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the provision of late night refreshment at different times from
those listed above, list below.
For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Section 13 of 18
SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL
Will the schedule to supply alcohol be subject to change if this application to
vary is successful?

r-

r

Yes

No

Standard Days And Timings
MONDAY
Start 08:00
Start

I
I

I

I
End I

I

End 23:00

I

End 23:00

Provide timings in 24 hour clock
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
I
of the week when you intend the premises
I to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY

I
I

I

I
End I

Start 08:00

I

End 23:00

Start 08:00
Start

I
I

WEDNESDAY

Start

I
I

I

I
End I

I
I

THURSDAY
Start 08:00

I
I

I

Start 08:00

I

Start

I

I
End I

End 23:45

I
I

FRIDAY

Start

I
I

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

I

I
End 51
Page
I

End 23:45

I
I

Continued from previous page...

SATURDAY
Start 08:00
Start

I
I

I

I
End I

I

End 22:30

End 23:45

I

I
I

SUNDAY
Start 10:00
Start

I
I

I
End I

I
Will the sale of alcohol be for consumption?

r

On the premises

r

Off the premises

r-

Both

I
I
If the sale of alcohol is for consumption on
the premises select on, if the sale of alcohol
is for consumption away from the premises
select off. If the sale of alcohol is for
consumption on the premises and away
from the premises select both.

State any seasonal variations.
For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of alcohol at different times from those listed above,
list below.
For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Section 14 of 18
ADULT ENTERTAINMENT
Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children.
Provide information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may
give rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for
example (but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups etc gambling machines etc.
NONE

Section 15 of 18
HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC
Standard Days And Timings

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Page 52

Continued from previous page...

MONDAY

I

I
End I

Start 08:00

I

End 23:00

Start

I

I
End I

Start 08:00

I

End 23:00

Start

I

I
End I

Start 08:00

I

End 00:00

Start

I

I
End I

Start 08:00

I

End 00:00

Start

I

I
End I

Start 08:00

I

End 00:00

Start

I

I
End I

Start 10:00

I

End 22:30

Start

I

Start 08:00
Start

I
I

I

End 23:00

Provide timings in 24 hour clock
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
I
of the week when you intend the premises
I to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY

I
I

I
I

WEDNESDAY

I
I

I
I

THURSDAY

I
I

I
I

FRIDAY

I
I

I
I

SATURDAY

I
I

I
I

SUNDAY

I
I

I
End I

I
I

State any seasonal variations.
For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the members and guests at different times from
those listed above, list below.
For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Page 53
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

Identify those conditions currently imposed on the licence which you believe could be removed as a consequence of the
proposed variation you are seeking.

□

I have enclosed the premises licence

□ I have enclosed the relevant part of the premises licence
Reasons why I have failed to enclose the premises licence or relevant part of premises licence.

Section 16 of 18
LICENSING OBJECTIVES
Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:
a) General – all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e)
List here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

Meat Liquor strenuously promotes the licensing objectives and will continue to do so.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

No change to existing robust measures to promote the licensing objectives.

c) Public safety

No change to existing robust measures to promote the licensing objectives.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

No change to existing robust measures to promote the licensing objectives.

e) The protection of children from harm

Page 54

No change to existing robust measures to promote the licensing objectives.
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

I

I

Section 17 of 18
NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT
In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

•

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience
does not exceed 500.

•

Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the
screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides
by age classification ratings.

•

Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided
that the audience does not exceed 1000.

•

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman
wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not
exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or
wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an
indoor sporting event.

•

Live music: no licence permission is required for:
a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell
alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not
licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises
of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,
and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local
authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

o
o
o
o

o

•

Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:
o
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol
for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
o
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.
o
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a
local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b)
the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority
concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

Page 55
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

•

Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the
audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance which amounts to adult entertainment remains
licensable.

•

Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, with no limit on
audience size for:
any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the entertainment is provided
by or on behalf of the local authority;
any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider;
any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is provided by or
on behalf of the school proprietor; and
any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) taking place at a travelling
circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and
(b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 consecutive days.

o
o
o
o

Section 18 of 18
PAYMENT DETAILS
This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card.
Variation Fees are determined by the non&nbsp;domestic rateable&nbsp;value of the premises.
To find out a premises non domestic rateable value go to the Valuation Office Agency site at http://www.voa.gov.uk/
business_rates/index.htm
Band A - No RV to £4300 £100.00
Band B - £4301 to £33000 £190.00
Band C - £33001 to £87000 £315.00
Band D - £87001 to £125000 £450.00*
Band E - £125001 and over £635.00*
*If the premises rateable value is in Bands D or E and the premises is primarily used for the consumption of alcohol on the
premises then your are required to pay a higher fee
Band D - £87001 to £125000 £900.00
Band E - £125001 and over £1,905.00
If you own a large premise you are subject to additional fees based upon the number in attendance at any one time
Capacity 5000-9999 £1,000.00
Capacity 10000 -14999 £2,000.00
Capacity 15000-19999 £4,000.00
Capacity 20000-29999 £8,000.00
Capacity 30000-39999 £16,000.00
Capacity 40000-49999 £24,000.00
Capacity 50000-59999 £32,000.00
Capacity 60000-69999 £40,000.00
Capacity 70000-79999 £48,000.00
Capacity 80000-89999 £56,000.00
Capacity 90000 and over £64,000.00
* Fee amount (£)

315.00

DECLARATION
1

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN
* CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY
CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

IZl

Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration

Page 56
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

This section should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent acting on
behalf of the applicant?”
* Full name

IMARK BROWNING
IBA LAW OBO THE APPLICANTS

* Capacity

10 / I 2019
D01 / □

* Date

dd

mm

yyyy

I

I

Add another signatory

I

I

I

Once you're finished you need to do the following:
1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as...
2. Go back to https://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/premises-licence/islington/change-1 to upload this file and continue
with your application.
Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand.
IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY
CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.
OFFICE USE ONLY

Applicant reference number
Fee paid
Payment provider reference
ELMS Payment Reference
Payment status
Payment authorisation code
Payment authorisation date
Date and time submitted
Approval deadline
Error message
Is Digitally signed
1

IMB/SC/MEAT/ISLINGTON/VAR/FULL
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

I
I

□
2

-

3

-

4

-

5

-

6

-

7

-

8

-

9 10
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
- 11
--

Page 57
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Next >

Appendix 2
PREMISES LICENCE

• ISLINGTON

LICENSING ACT 2003
Premises licence
number

Date of original
grant*

LN/14075-300519

11 March 2013

*An annual fee associated with this licence is to be paid on the anniversary of the
original grant date.
Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

MEAT LIQUOR N1
133 UPPER STREET
Post town
London
Tele hone number
020 3711 0104

t,

Post code

N11QP

Where the licence is time limited the dates
Not A licable
Licensable activities authorised by the licence
•

The sale by retail of alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
• The sale by retail of alcohol:

Monday

08:00

to

Tuesday

08:00
08:00

to
to
to
to

Wednesday
Thursday

08:00

Friday
Saturday
Sunday

08:00
08:00
10:00

to

to

23:00
23:00
23:00
23:00
23:00
23:00
22:30

1:.
I

I

Gaming Machine Provision:
Not authorised

The opening hours of the premises:

Monday

08:00

Tuesday

08:00

Wednesday

08:00

Thursday

08:00

Friday
Saturday
Sunday

08:00

08:00
10:00

to
to
to
to
to
to
to

23:00
23:00
23:00
23:00
23:00

23:00
22:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off
supplies
On and off supplies

Page 58

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and e-mail (where relevant) of holder of
premises licence
Meatailer Limited

First Floor
50-51 Berwick Street

London
W1F 8SJ
Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where
applicable)

07555270
Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the
premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol
Scott Collins

rsonal Ii

e number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated
ere the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol

Islington Council
Public Protection Division

222 Upper Street

London
N11XR

T: 020 7527 3031
E: licensing@islington.gov.uk

Date of Issue

Page 59

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions
1.

2.

No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence:
a)

at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the
premises licence, or

b)

at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal
licence or his personal licence is suspended.

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by
person who holds a personal licence.

a

There are further 'Mandatory conditions' applicable to licences authorising the supply of
alcohol. A full list of the current mandatory conditions is available from the licensing pages
on Islington's web site, www.islington.gov.uk. This list is subject to change by order of the
Secretary of State and licensees and other responsible persons are advised to ensure they
are aware of the latest conditions.

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule
1.

The outside tables and chairs area, to which off sales of alcohol will be made, shall
only operate until 22:30 on Mondays to Saturdays and 22:00 on Sundays.

2.

The premises will install and operate a CCTV system. Images will be retained and
made available to the Police and the licensing Authority upon reasonable request.

3.

The premises will place a notice at the exits asking patrons to leave the premises in
a respectful manner.

4.

The premises will operate a Challenge 21 age verification system. All staff will
receive training in relation to this.

5.

Customers at external tables and chairs shall be seated and served by waiter or
waitress.

6.

No more than 10 persons shall be permitted to stand and smoke at any one time at
the external designated smoking area.

7.
8.

No glasses shall be used by patrons who are standing and smoking.
External tables and chairs shall be out of use after 22:30 Monday to Saturday and

22:00 on Sundays.
Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

Nil
Annex 4 - Plans
Reference Number: 1421.MF.101 - Basement Floor, Ground Floor and Mezzanine Floor
Date: 03/03/2015

Page 60

Premises Licence Sum mat

I SLI NG TON

Licensing Act 2003
Premises licence
number

Date of original
grant*

LN/14075-300519

11 March 2013

*An annual fee associated with this licence Is to be paid on the anniversary of the
original grant date.
Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

MEAT LIQUOR N1

133 UPPER STREET
Post town
London
Tele hone number
020 3711 0104

Post code

N11QP

Where the licence is time limited the dates
Not A

licable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence
•

The sale by retail of alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
•

The sale by retail of alcohol:

Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday

Friday
Saturday
Sunday

08:00
08:00
08:00
08:00
08:00
08:00
10:00

to
to

to
to
to

to
to

23:00
23:00
23:00
23:00
23:00
23:00
22:30

I•

Gaming Machine Provision;
Not authorised
The opening hours of the premises:
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday

Friday
Saturday
Sunday

08:00
08:00
08:00
08:00

to
to
to
to

08:00
08:00
10:00

to
to
to

23:00
23:00
23:00

23:00
23:00
23:00
22:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off
supplies
On and off suoolies

Page 61

Name, (registered} address, telephone number and e-mail (where relevant) of holder of
premises licence
Meatailer Limited
First Floor
50-51 Berwick Street
London
W1F 8SJ
Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where
applicable}

07555270
Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the
supply of alcohol
Scott Collins
State whether access to the premises by children Is restricted or prohibited
It is an offence to allow persons under the age of 16 years to be on the premises whilst it is
open exclusively or primarily for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises unless
they are accompanied by a person aged 18 or over. No unaccompanied person under the age
of 16 years shall be permitted on the premises between 12 midnight and 5am if alcohol is
supplied for consumption on the premises.
Islington Council
Public Protection Division
222 Upper Street
London
N11XR

T: 020 7527 3031

E: licensing@islington.gov.uk

Page 62

©This drawing is the property of Harrison Company Limited.
Copyright is reserved by them and the drawing issued on
condition that it is not copied either wholly or part without the
consent in writing of Harrison Company Limited. Figured
dimensions to take preference over those scaled. All
dimensions to be checked on site before commencement of
any work or shop drawings. This drawing is to be read in
conjunction with the specification when existing.
revisions

:
:
:
•
•

•

!

-..;;~:_,;;-,;

:
!.
.!
...

,-l:::L,,1-J)-,

lq1-- ///I

//

--f"'sol '/(f ·;1
..c;::,J~-,1

!

!(-,,
I
/I

;r -

rr,

~!

!

T~"'"'f~'

I

•

,----------~------~
I

f:

Y

I

/

·;

..
,I

□

""

~

0

..

0

IFD

~

'

'~-

/

1/

~

I

~"-'-J

I

~
I

~

,.___

I

@

All Doors and walls in thick lines to conform to the
definition of fire resisting.
Doors including frames are to be tested and
installed in accordance with the current British
Standard BS476: Part 22
(and BS 476: Section 31.1 where's' specification
requires smoke stopping).

/
I

-;_"""-~J.-,

:

f°'"'"-;..j

's,J

CELLAR

Exit widths and staircases to conform to BS 5588:
Part 2 or Part 6.
Arrow denotes upward direction.
Occupation densities to BS 5588: Part 2 or Part 6 as
appropriate.

i
I

Proposed Basement

Proposed Mezzanine

Scale 1:100

Scale 1:100

IZ]

Area covered by void smoke detector (BS 5839)

§] Sign - 'FIRE DOOR KEEP SHUT' - 75mm letters to

Page 63

;~;~ t[i0~--,-~•; :;_ _'_: /li0~!if;rjjn
,",' 1'./ /

-•-• = i ~ ©
G•}[
: ~iso] -==-&..;;§:)1~3 l:"-I
RBI
I■ l I I=I j 'j . ..· . ',

r

111

~~
' ·,

'Sol

711T111T7111Il][]l
'" "" ,,

I

\[il.
I,--,-,

'-,

I

~

0

ReTl1L SPACE
(62sqm)

~1~1

o□

0 a·

'

.

~
ees""""'"'

~
=h=.
PREP /

,· ·, ,..... ,_ .' ' ' ' ' /
/JJ
. , · ®l@¼=I ~ ;,,_:.; r.::r ·r:7'--cr
. _;' .

•

'

'

.

0

,.
11

0

1

1

•

n

F~

f "'"T--------;

;

,

I!1

'
,
1
r/

0

l

1

0

/
•I

•

0

•

•

•

•

/

WASH UP

,

--

---

I

/
• Ii

!

'@]
@
f.
AA.•• FP~

r:r

'<'""'\0
°' , ""''""'
f i ---;,
A

"

1

x-·
,

j,

,

([""!!
!.. .. /

'.(!'·,/'. /~

'\,,f"'
\;~
.»,
<
•,

({''...-~!,

o•

'

,T----,
U_
Jj
d-}j!/,.. I

[J tJJ

\\<)

·- - - -•

"TT

:

BAR couNTE

1

R •

-

•-•

1:
:;

•f ,. • ~ .
J,t

' i .,.
I

·--',',1y,

--

PE'~ )k 1T€ ~ /

, 0 ,O__ ,,,
,,,;/ l-- --..,I:, /
,.
•1·Jtr}_•

·t •;""''
,:, _, •·".• •
~© · · ci!,,w,,
.,
/,

•
'•

both sides of door leaf
~ Sign - 'FIRE DOOR KEEP LOCKED' - 75mm letters to
both sides of door leaf
~ Sign - 'FIRE EXIT KEEP CLEAR' - 75mm letters to
external face of door leafs
I 522 1 ~ign - internally illuminated 'FIRE EXIT' or graphic
equivalent - 75mm high letters
Directional arrow to be provided in the direction
indicated
Area covered by alarm sounder (at high level to be
agreed on site)

:tt

-....w..-Area covered by visual and audible alarm sounder
(at high level to be agreed on site)
Area covered by emergency luminaire.
Certificates of compliance to B.S. 5839 (Fire
Alarms) and/ or B.S. 5266 (Emergency Lighting) to
be provided to the fire Authority.

0

''
,1:

L J):
ic,;;r,
,,I ,1,1,,
1• , ·~--

2. Fire resisting doors required to resist the passage of smoke at ambient
temperature conditions should, unless tested in accordance with B.S. 476
section 311, to be fitted with a smoke seal.
3. The fire alarm system is to comply with British Standard B.S. 5839.
4. The emergency lighting installation is to comply to British Standard 5266
Pt.1.
5. Illuminated 'EXIT signs are to conform to British Standard B.S. 2560.

6. Fire fighting equipment to conform to British Standard B.S. 5423.
7. Fire safety related signs & notices are to conform to British Standard
B.S. 5449 Pt.1.

1

v, Vision panel
,e. FD30S
♦ FD60S
~
F.A.P

8. Wall & ceiling linings are to be class 1 surface spread offiame (as
defined in British Standard B.S. 476 Pt. 7) in non--public areas & class 0
(as defined in the Building Regulations) in circulation spaces.
9. Upholstered seating furniture should satisfy, as a minimum standard,
(ignition source), (cigarette test) specified in British Standard B.S. 5852
Pt.1 'Fire tests for furniture -- Methods oftest for ignitability by smokers
materials of upholstered composites for seating' & British Standard B.S.
5852 Pt.2 'Fire tests for furniture -- Methods of tests for ignitability of
upholstered composites for testing by flaming source'. For which latter
standard crib ignition source 5 is the minimum requirement.

10. Any fabrics which have received a fiame retardant treatment should be
subjected to the water soak test detailed in British Standard B.S. 5651
independant certification to the above standards should be provided from
an accredited test organisation.
11. Curtains & drapes are to satisfy type B, performance requirements of
British Standard B.S. 5867 Pt.2.
12. Artificial foliage & other decorative effects are to be fire retardant to the
satisfaction of the Fire Authority.
13. Textile floor coverings should be tested to British Standard B.S. 4790
(Effects of small ignition source hot metal nut method).

Fire alarm panel
14. Vertically hung textiles should conform to British Standard B.S. 5438.

,,

1

~ ;: 'Hir'11;;
•. ;? L'.:.'.'....J
•

•

0

•

•
,-.t
fl

~"if'

1fl;;i~

,,

_fi •... "··•' ''···' •

t

// /

·---s,l.

\.]0
l. ,,~i!.,,l
c: I --i.

~--,
,!

<"" '" ' "

\C,
-

..
r:r·,in,r,
1

t __ ;

,,.

"

, , , ,-b,

! :=i
"••--,..c/,"'·

TERRACE DINING

I s22 I

'

- -- \ -- .
- .
......

0
1.,~. ~¼""""'
, •' ....... L__ __

i

:1u

0

•

1

/ •//
•~
I• ><,_.,._
/

~

•

~l':--:1.,CJ...
,_
'
"'" •=__·"!·,, !
,i 0 7

'

/

J

r!:].7-i":1.rt°:I) ):::..: ,. r:J,,r::_'-

•

' !!!!] 0

I I.··-

'

1

---

--- .

,

~

!Ill] ~0 u-· 0
'~1,[IBll'
' ' '
""'

··

I

1. Doors & partitions required to be fire resisting are to be in accordance
with British Standard B.S. 476 Pt. 3.

~ Area covered by smoke detector (BS 5839)

~ Area covered by heat detector (BS 5839)

-@l

Licensing- Fire Safety Requirements.

Fire alarm call point (BS 5839)

~

ll

/4.,
~

, ,
o,:-----/-----,
"~ ~ t ____ /
/ e -f -- ··@

..

0

&

il::,.

/°'"-"-•-'

'

~
RETAIL
STORAGE

9 litre water extinguisher
9 litre foam extinguisher
2kg carbon dioxide extinguisher
Fire blanket
Fry fighter
All fire extinguishers to have
plywood pattress built into wall

'r::r

/

'

~

Fire safety installation legend

Ah
&

,~'=-cccccc,C

--lcoccc,,/_/

.••
.•. •..
. .
.. ..
• .•
.. .
... ...

0

RETAIL
STORAGE

•

External Emergency signage and lighting
added

I

R"l:,-

.. ..

L ___________ _

09.01 .13

1'

,,=~

~.. .

..i
..

AD

/
" /

•
•

.!

A

•/

.

•

comment

• /

~

•

i
•

date

'

II

ltf--------1__$~
(i' l1
1,1-...
--{F"""'"';-j~_j

,--

by

I/

--_[ 0LJ;
if--;

.

•

/

,,

rev

11

Ji M
i----if_t~';
]ti
~~
i_~

-■-■-■-■-■-■-■Area shown thus indicates:-1.Area to be licensed for late night
refreshments.
2.Area to be licensed for sale and
consumption of alcohol.
3. Area to be licensed for recorded music

A copy of the laboratory test report form an accredited testing laboratory
identifying compliance of the furnishing composite with the above
mentioned British Standards must be forwarded to this Authority before
installation & confirmation that the furnishings specified in this certificate
have been installed in the premises.

NOTES
1. FIRE ALARM INSTALLATION TO BEL1 SYSTEM
2. FIRE SUPPRESSION TO BE INSTALLED OVER
THE COOKING APPLIANCES WITHIN THE
COOKLINE AREA

+---1 s22I

horrison

REALISING CREATIVE ENVIRONMENTS
LONDON: 39 Margaret Street, London W1 G OJQ
Call +44 (0)20 7493 6397
BIRMINGHAM: 15 Coleshill Street, Sutton Coldfield,
Birmingham B72 1 SD
Call +44 (0)121 321 3030

0
Proposed Ground Floor
Scale 1:100

technical@hrsn.co.uk hrsn.co.uk
client

Daylesford
project

133 Upper Street
London N1 1 QP
title

Licensing Plan
Ground Floor, Mezzanine and Basement
drawn

PJB

check

scale
@A1

1:100@A1

date

project/dwg no.

25-04-12

2528/13/A

Appendix 3
Rep 1
Re:
Our Ref:
Date:

Meat Liquor.
203213/091019/1
09 Oct 2019

METROPOLITAN POLICE SERVICE

Premises Licence Application.
Meat Liquor,
Colliers Garage,
133B Upper St,
Islington,
N11QP

Islington Police Licensing Team
Islington Police Station
2 Tolpuddle Street
London
N1 0YY

Contact:

07919 547416
adam.peace@met.police.uk

mbrowning@balaw.co.uk [agent]

Dear Mr Browning,

I am aware that you are acting on behalf of the above premises in this matter; many thanks for your licence
variation application.

Please accept this e-mail as my initial representation.
__________

As you know, police hold responsibility for ensuring that with any application the local authorities licensing
objectives are adhered to, and that proposals do not invite any heightened risk or likelihood of crime, disorder
or anti-social behaviour.
You will be aware that the venue in question lies at the heart of the Upper Street commercial area, posing
significant challenges with regard to crime and anti-social behaviour in the night time economy. I note in
reviewing the application that the current licence is very lightly conditioned and in need of general overhaul
and update.
I do not object to the proposed extention to operating hours, however I have several suggested conditions
that we the police would like to see added under the Annex 2 schedule.
None of these suggestions should be onerous to your client, all demonstrate good practice, and I have no
doubt all are aready a reflection of the operation as it stands.
__________
Please consider the below:

1.

___

(To replace current Annex 2.2):

Page 64

CCTV shall be installed, operated and maintained, at all times that the premises is open for licensable
activities, so as to comply with the following criteria:
(a) The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every week to ensure that the system is working
properly and that the date and time are correct. A record of these checks, showing the date and
name of the person checking, shall be kept and made available to Police or authorised Council
officers on request, subject to meeting the tests contained within the Data Protectiuon Act 1998
(b) The Police must be informed if the licence holder becomes aware that said system will not be
operating for longer than one day of business for any reason
(c) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises
(d) The system will provide full coverage of the publicly accessible interior of the premises (excluding
the toilet areas), and any exterior part of the premises accessible to the public
(e) The system shall record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped
(f) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will be provided free
of charge to Police or authorised Council officers on request (subject to the Data Protection Act 1998)
within 24 hours of any request
(g) At all times when the premises are open for licensable activities, there will be a person on the
premises who can operate the system sufficiently to allow Police or authorised Council officers to view
footage on request and to supply a copy of footage immediately to Police to assist with the
immediate investigation of an offence
2. (To replace current annex 2.4):
The premises will operate the Challenge 25 proof of age scheme.
Only suitable forms of photographic identification, such as passport or UK driving licence, or
holographically marked PASS scheme cards, will be accepted.
3. (Addition):
Off sales shall not be permitted after 11pm
4. (Addition):
Sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall only be made when ancillary to the purchase
of a main meal to take away, and only up to a maximum of four beers of 330ml or a single 750ml
bottle of wine per order.
5. (Addition):
Regarding all off sales by way of delivery from telephone/internet orders, the following will be
adhered to.
a) Couriers will be trained on relevant aspects of the Licensing Act 2003 including underage sales,
sales to a person who is drunk, obtaining alcohol for a child or a person who is drunk and delivering
alcohol to someone under the age of 18.
b) Any person taking an order for the supply of alcohol on behalf of the premises licence holder will
inform all customers that proof of age by way of photographic driving licence, passport or a form of
identification with the PASS hologram will be required before alcohol is supplied.
c) The licensee shall ensure that any delivery service employed to facilitate the delivery of alcohol, as
an ancillary to a food order, has an adequate proof of age scheme in place, such as the Challenge
25 scheme, to be undertaken at the point of delivery to any customer.
6. (Addition):
In the event that any assault, serious crime or disorder is, or appears to have been, committed on the
premises, the management will arrange upon becoming aware of it that:
(a) The police (and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service) are called without
unreasonable delay
(b) Where staff consider it safe to do so, all reasonable measures are taken to apprehend any suspect
pending the arrival of the police
(c) Where it is noted that police attendance will occur, any crime scene is preserved until the arrival
of police, so as to enable a full forensic investigation to be carried out by the police
(d) Such other measures are taken, as far as is reasonably practicable, to fully protect the safety of all
persons present on the premises.
7. (Addition):
An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to the police or an
authorised officer, which will record the following
(a) All crimes reported to the venue
(b) Any complaints received
(c) Any incidents of disorder
(d) Any faults in the CCTV system

Page 65

(e) Any visit known to (or brought to the attention of), the management, by a relevant authority or
emergency service
(f) Any and all ejections of patrons
(g) Any and all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons
(h) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol
8. (Addition):
The holder of the premises licence shall participate fully in the local pub watch scheme.
9. (Addition):
Clear and prominent signage will be displayed on the premises advising patrons of the following:
(a) That CCTV is in operation
(b) That Challenge 25 Age Verification is in operation
(c) That thieves operate in the area and patrons should be vigilant, safeguard their belongings, and
report any concerns to the venue management.
10. (Addition):
All staff training records shall be kept readily available on the premises for inspection by the Licensing
Authority and Police.
11. (Addition):
The licensee shall train and instruct the management and staff to prevent the admission of, and
promote the orderly departure of:
a) Any persons who appear to be drunk or disorderly
b) Any persons displaying signs of other substance abuse
12. (Addition):
Staff shall carry out routine patrols to monitor customer behaviour and a member of staff shall be
tasked with monitoring customer dispersal at closing time to encourage customers to leave quietly
and not to loiter in the vicinity.
Please do get back to me as soon as possible with your acceptance of these suggested amendments and
additions.
I would of course be very happy to discuss or clarify any queries or reservations you have by return e-mail.
This application is obviously time sensitive and a prompt response would be appreciated.
(Please bear in mind the date for last representations on this matter stands at 29/10/19).

Very best regards,
PC Adam Peace
Islington Police Licensing Officer
Environment & Regeneration
Islington Council
222 Upper Street, London, N1 1XR

Page 66

Rep 2
From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

Licensing
RE: Meat Liquor N1, Collier"s Garage, 133B Upper Street, Islington London N11QP
25 October 2019 16:33:19

Dear Sirs,
Further to my email below, I would also add that unlike other street facing restaurants, Meat
Liquor is surrounded by residential units and with the new Islington Square development behind
it. As such, I would ask that the opening hours not be extended.
Kind regards

--

From:
Sent: 25 October 2019 12:39
To: 'licensing@islington.gov.uk' <licensing@islington.gov.uk>
Subject: Meat Liquor N1, Collier's Garage, 133B Upper Street, Islington London N11QP
Dear Sirs,
I refer to the above licensing application.
My interest in this lies as a resident. I live at
, which is the property located right
in front of Meat Liquor. The full address is
.
the courtyard, where Meat Liquor currently has tables and outdoor
dining.
The issue which I have with the licence application is one of public nuisance. Things are fine
during winter but in the summer months, Meat Liquor has had patrons dining outdoors past the
stipulated opening hours and because it is in a courtyard, the noise carries. I am aware that
living on Upper Street. it is only fair that I expect a certain amount of noise and activity from the
commercial premises. However when the noise continues past regulated opening hours, I
believe that this is excessive. Meat Liquor also has music which it plays very loudly and which I
can hear from my bedroom, even with the windows shut.
To be fair, I have rung Meat Liquor on several occasions in the past and they have been good at
reminding the diners that it's past opening hours. However they do not do this on their own
volition and it requires phone calls from neighbours in order for them to do so. My concern is
that if the licensing hours are extended, Meat Liquor lacks any initiative to keep an eye on the
fact that diners continue to stay past opening hours and create loud levels of noise.
Kind regards

-

-

Telephone:

Page 67

Appendix 4
Whitton, Daniel
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Dear

-

Whitton, Daniel
20 November 2019 12:25

-

RE: Meat Liquor N1, Collier's Garage, 133B Upper Street, Islington London N11QP

I am writing as the applicant’s representative has produced the below response to the concerns
you have raised in regards to their premises licence variation application:
We act on behalf of Meat Liquor.
We have been passed your representation dated 25 October.
The general manager of the restaurant is Steve Crozier, and his telephone number is
07517 886 478. Meat Liquor takes its responsibilities very seriously and obviously wants to
have a great relationship with its neighbours. Steve was concerned to read your letter. He
has a zero tolerance approach to patrons staying on after licensed hours. You will be
aware that Meson Callejon have recently taken a tenancy in the square and have just
finished their first summer season. Meat Liquor has experienced their diners occupying
outside tables after hours and creating quite a bit of noise.
We do our level best to keep noise nuisance to an absolute minimum and hope very much
that you will come to the restaurant and see for yourself. Would it be OK for Steve to
contact you?
Our application is for an additional hour on Thurs, Fri and Sat to allow diners to have a less
rushed experience.
We are happy to agree that external tables and chairs should be put out of use by 2230 on
weekdays and 2200 on Sundays?
Please let me know if that would address your concerns? We have also agreed a number
of additional conditions with the Police.
Many thanks for your time.
Kind regards
Mark Browning
BA LAW Limited
T: 0207 993 4040
M: 07956 415441
www.bagroupltd.com
The application has now, on the request of the applicant, been re-scheduled for determination
before a licensing sub-committee on 17th December as opposed to 21st November.

Page1 68

Appendix 5
Suggested conditions of approval consistent with the operating schedule
1.

No additional controls proposed.

Conditions proposed by the Metropolitan Police
2.

CCTV shall be installed, operated and maintained, at all times that the premises is open for
licensable activities, so as to comply with the following criteria:
a.

The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every week to ensure that the
system is working properly and that the date and time are correct. A record of these
checks, showing the date and name of the person checking, shall be kept and made
available to Police or authorised Council officers on request, subject to meeting the
tests contained within the Data Protection Act 1998;

b.

The Police must be informed if the licence holder becomes aware that said system will
not be operating for longer than one day of business for any reason;

c.

One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises;

d.

The system will provide full coverage of the publicly accessible interior of the premises
(excluding the toilet areas), and any exterior part of the premises accessible to the
public;

e.

The system shall record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped;

f.

Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will be
provided free of charge to Police or authorised Council officers on request (subject to
the Data Protection Act 1998) within 24 hours of any request; and

g.

At all times when the premises are open for licensable activities, there will be a person
on the premises who can operate the system sufficiently to allow Police or authorised
Council officers to view footage on request and to supply a copy of footage immediately
to Police to assist with the immediate investigation of an offence

(to replace current condition 2.2)
3.

The premises will operate the Challenge 25 proof of age scheme where only suitable forms of
photographic identification, such as passport or UK driving licence, or holographically marked
PASS scheme cards, will be accepted.
(to replace current condition 2.4)

4.

Off sales shall not be permitted after 11pm.

5.

Sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall only be made when ancillary to the
purchase of a main meal to take away, and only up to a maximum of four beers of 330ml or a
single 750ml bottle of wine per order.

6.

Regarding all off sales by way of delivery from telephone/internet orders, the following will be
adhered to:
a.

Couriers will be trained on relevant aspects of the Licensing Act 2003 including
underage sales, sales to a person who is drunk, obtaining alcohol for a child or a
person who is drunk and delivering alcohol to someone under the age of 18;

b.

Any person taking an order for the supply of alcohol on behalf of the premises licence
holder will inform all customers that proof of age by way of photographic driving
licence, passport or a form of identification with the PASS hologram will be required
before alcohol is supplied; and

Page 69

c.

7.

8.

The licensee shall ensure that any delivery service employed to facilitate the delivery of
alcohol, as an ancillary to a food order, has an adequate proof of age scheme in place,
such as the Challenge 25 scheme, to be undertaken at the point of delivery to any
customer.

In the event that any assault, serious crime or disorder is, or appears to have been,
committed on the premises, the management will arrange upon becoming aware of it that:
a.

The police (and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service) are called without
unreasonable delay;

b.

Where staff consider it safe to do so, all reasonable measures are taken to apprehend
any suspect pending the arrival of the police;

c.

Where it is noted that police attendance will occur, any crime scene is preserved until
the arrival of police, so as to enable a full forensic investigation to be carried out by the
police; and

d.

Such other measures are taken, as far as is reasonably practicable, to fully protect the
safety of all persons present on the premises.

An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to the police or
an authorised officer, which will record the following:
a.

All crimes reported to the venue;

b.

Any complaints received;

c.

Any incidents of disorder;

d.

Any faults in the CCTV system;

e.

Any visit known to (or brought to the attention of), the management, by a relevant
authority or emergency service;

f.

Any and all ejections of patrons;

g.

Any and all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons; and

h.

Any refusal of the sale of alcohol.

9.

The holder of the premises licence shall participate fully in the local pub watch scheme.

10.

Clear and prominent signage will be displayed on the premises advising patrons of the
following:
a.

That CCTV is in operation;

b.

That Challenge 25 Age Verification is in operation; and

c.

That thieves operate in the area and patrons should be vigilant, safeguard their
belongings, and report any concerns to the venue management.

11.

All staff training records shall be kept readily available on the premises for inspection by the
Licensing Authority and Police.

12.

The licensee shall train and instruct the management and staff to prevent the admission of,
and promote the orderly departure of:
a.

Any persons who appear to be drunk or disorderly; and

b.

Any persons displaying signs of other substance abuse.

Page 70

13.

Staff shall carry out routine patrols to monitor customer behaviour and a member of staff shall
be tasked with monitoring customer dispersal at closing time to encourage customers to leave
quietly and not to loiter in the vicinity.

Page 71

.....
...........'---=--=--:.:.::-___Jl:
\~ \

.•
•

C:

~

i

----=::: !;.

.. ...

. -.-

• • • - •

Page 72

..... -

.._

..•
.
... -.

(;): r·i

-:
t

.-.........

.
..••.
.••
..•
•
...••
...
.•

-

.... •·. ~

!!.

~

•

(;)

.
.•.•

•

l'tal

efl~

••
••

I
••

.......

•••
••

.
..•
.•

.••

•

•••

.• ..•
..• ••
• •
•••
.• .•.
•

:16 1"'

::
•
•••
•

..
.•

.........--·
...

Agenda Item B3

t

1S LINGTON

Environment & Regeneration
Municipal Office, 222 Upper Street, N11XR
Report of: Service Director, Public Protection
Meeting of:

Date:

Ward(s):

Licensing Sub-Committee - A

17/12/2019

Bunhill

I

Exempt

I Non-exempt

SUBJECT: PREMISES LICENCE NEW APPLICATION
RE:
172 GOSWELL ROAD, LONDON EClV 7DT

1.

Synopsis
1.1

This is an application for a new premise licence under the Licensing Act 2003.

1.2

The new application is to allow:
•

2.

The on sales of alcohol from 12:00 until 23:00 Monday to Saturday and from
12:00 until 22:00 Sunday.

Relevant Representations

1

Licensing Authority

No

Metropolitan Police

No - Conditions agreed

Noise

No - Conditions agreed

Health and Safety

No

Trading Standards

No - Conditions agreed

Public Health

No

Safeguarding Children

No

Page 73

3.

4.

London Fire Brigade

No

Local residents

Yes: Three residents

Other bodies

No:

Background
3.1

This property is not currently licensed.

3.2

The Licensing Authority received three letters of representation in opposition to this
application from residents local to the premises. The applicant has accepted a number
of conditions suggested by Islington's Noise Service, Trading Standards Service and the
Police. See Appendix 4.

3.3

On receipt of the representations, the applicant responded to the residents' concerns.
This document was forwarded to the residents. This is attached as Appendix 3.

Planning Implications
4.1

The Planning & Development section have the following comments to make in relation
to the above application:
No relevant planning history relating to the premises.
There are no outstanding planning enforcement investigations in relation to this site.

5.

Recommendations
5.1

To determine the application for a new premises licence under Section 17 of the
Licensing Act 2003.

5.2

These premises are located in the Bunhill Cumulative Impact Area therefore the
Licensing Committee will need to consider Licensing Policy 3, which states that there is
a presumption of refusa l unless the Committee is satisfied that there will be no adverse
cumulative impact on the licensing objectives.

5.3

If the Committee grants the application, it should be subject to:
i.

conditions prepared by the Licensing Officer which are consistent with the
Operating Schedule (see appendix 4); and

ii.

any conditions deemed appropriate by the Committee to promote the four
licensing objectives (see appendix 4)

Page 74

6.

Reasons for recommendations
6.1

The Council is required to consider this application in the light of all relevant
information, and if approval is given, it may attach such conditions as appropriate to
promote the licensing objectives.

Appendices:
Appendix 1:

application form;

Appendix 2:

representations;

Appendix 3:

response from the applicant to the representors;

Appendix 4:

suggested conditions and map of premises location.

Background papers:
None.

Final report clearance:

Signed by:

Date
Report author: Lice

i

Tel: 020 75027 3031
E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk

Page 75

4, /Jzj JC,

Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003
PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this fonn please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are
completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your
answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

N

11We

,--

✓..t'A-£ c;;; .. /-A-13?</S ..................................................... .

(Insert name(s) ofapplicant)

apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises
described In Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the
relevant llcemlag authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licen1ing Act 2003
Part 1 - Premises details
Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map referenee or description

Post town

Postcode

GCIV

Telephone number at premises (if any)
Non•domestic rateable value of premises

£

Part 2 • Applicant details
Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as
a)

an individual or individuals •

b)

a person other than an individual*

iii

as a limited company/limited liability
partnership
as a partnership (other than limited
liability)
as an unincorporated association or

iv

other (for example a statutory corporation)

ii

c)

a recognised club

d)

a charity

e)

the proprietor of an educational establishment

Page 76

Please tick as appropriate

□

please complete section (A)

M

please complete section (B)

□

please complete section (8)

□
□
□
□
□

please complete section (B)
please complete section (B)
please complete section (8)
please complete section (B)
please complete section (B)

M

Mr
s

r

Mi

M

ss

s

Other Title (for
example, Rev)

j Fintoames

Surname
Date or birth

I am 18 years old or over

Nationality

□

Please tick yes

Where applicable (ifdemonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to work
checking service), the 9-digit 'share code' provided to the applicant by that service: (please see
note 1S for information)

Current residential

address if different from
premises address
Posttown

I

Daytime contact telephone number

I Postcode I

I

E-maU address
(optional)

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS
Please provide name and registered address or applicant in fulL Where appropriate please
give any registered number. In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a
body corporate), please glve the name and address of each party concerned.

Name
Address

BoccA- /N Celo

L.To

c:,2C,I

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.)

L/.m1 /eJ lOMlf•wJ'
Telephone number (if any)

----------=====

E-mail address (optional)

Page 77

Part 3 Operating Scbedale
DD

MM

YYYY

DD

MM

YYYY

When do you want the premises licence to start?

lalt 11121.21a, 1,1

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period,
when do you want it to end?

I I I I I I I I

Please give a general description of the premises (pl~ read guidance note 1)

4 c2S Co Uc~J

. . . . .,. -4',1'7;7

~

AJ

Gje- /<eJYt ~ a
If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any
one time, please state the number expected to attend.
What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?
(please see sections t and 14 and Schedules I and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)
Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2)

Please tick all that
apply

a)

plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)

b)

films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)

□
□

c)

indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)

□

d)

boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)

D

e)

live music (if ticking yes, till in box E)

□

f)

recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)

g)

perfonnances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box 0)

h)

anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)
(if ticking yes, fill in box H)

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)_
Supply ofalcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)

Page 78

□
□

□
□
□

t)

a health service body

g)

a person who is registered under Part 2 of the
Care Standards Act 2000 (c 14) in respect of an
independent hospital in Wales

D

please complete section (B)

ga)

a person who is registered tmder Chapter 2 of
Part I of the Health and Social Care Act 2008
(within the meaning of that Part) in an
independent hospital in England

O

please complete section (B)

h)

the chief officer of police of a police force in
England and Wales

D

please complete section (B)

please complete section (B)

• If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confinn (by ticking yes to one
box below):
I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the
premises for licensable activities; or
I am making the application pursuant to a
statutory function or
a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative

D
0

D

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)
M
r

□

Mr

s

□

Mi
ss

□

M
s

□

Other Title (for
example, Rev)

I

Sumame

Jlintaames

Date of birth

I am 18 years old or over

0

Please tick yes

Nationality

Current residential
address ifdifferent from
premises address

I,

I

Post town
Daytime contact telephone number
E-mail address
(optional)

I

I Postcode

I

I

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office Online right to work
checking seivice), the 9-digit 'share code' provided to the applicant by that service (please see
note IS for infonnation)

SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable)

Page 79

J

wm the sueel! of alcohol be for
coosumetlon - please tick (please read
guidance note 8)

Sapply of alcohol

Standard days and
timing1; (please read
guidance note 7)

Day

Start

Mon

1.1..

Tue

fJ

Finish

12,,,

On the
premises
Offthe
premises

1B

Both

D

□

State an:t: seasonal variations for the SUl!l!b'. of alcohol (please

read guidance note 5)

.11.r

-

Wed

IL

l..2.3

Thur

11

l.£j

Fri

~

Sat

1.2.

"Jl..3

Sun

,a.

!li.,

Non standard dmlnl!: Where :y:ou intend to use the l!Rmises
for the sul!l!lI of alcohol at different times to those listed in tbe
column on the left. l!lease list (please read guidance note 6)

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as
designated premises supervisor (Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the
checklist at the end of the form):

..
Postcode

K
Please blpUgbt any adult entertainment or services, activities. other entertainment or
matten ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of

Page 80

cbUdren (please read guidance note 9).

L
Houn premises are
open to tbe public
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 5)

/UolV~

Day
Mon

Start

Finish

\L

__g__

Tue

t-?

?-~

Wed

\? -

? <:,.

"J

Thur

\ ") -

Fri

1?

'JC:.

Sat

\?

z~

Sun

l?

47,-1,,,,.

?,,,~

Non standard timina. Wb![! xou intend the gremises to be
to tbe public at different timg from those listed la the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)
Ol!!D

-

M
Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

Page 81

For Joint applications, signature or 2" applicant or 2" applicant's soUcltor or other
authorised agent (please read guidance note 13). If signing on behalf of tbe applicant, please
state in what capacity.
Signature
Date
Capacity
Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated
with this application (please read guidance note 14)

Post town I
I Postcode
Telephone number (if any)
I
If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mai I address (optional)

I

Notes for Guidance
1. Describe the premises, for example the type of premises, its general situation and layout
and any other infonnation which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where
your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for
consumption of these off-supplies. you must include a description of where the place will
be and its proximity to the premises.
2. In tenns of specific regulated entertainments please note that:
• Plays: no licence is required for perfonnances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any
day, provided that the audience does not exceed S00 . .
• Films: no licence is required for 'not-for-profit' film exhibition held in
community premises between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the
audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent 10 the screening

Page 82

•

•

I W1derstand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will
be rejected.
[Applicable to all individual applicants, including those in a partnership which is not
a limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnerships) I
have included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United
Kingdom or my share code issued by the Home Office online right to work
checking service (please read note 15).

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A F~E STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION, THOSE
WHO MAKE A FA~E STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.
IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A

PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO
BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS, THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT
LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE
LIABLE TO A CML PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF fflE IMMIGRATION,
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE
SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMIITING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE
KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT mE
EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.
Part 4-Signatures (please read guidance note t I)
Signature of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance
note 12). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.

•

[Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a
partnership which is not a limited liability partnership) J understand I
am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the
entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if I am subject to a
condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on
ofa licensable activity) and that my licence will become invalid ifl
cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance
note 15).

•

The DPS named in this application fonn is entitled to work in the UK
(and is not subject to conditions preventing him or her from doing
work relating to a licensable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or
her proof of entitlement to work, or have conducted an online right to
work check using the Home Office online right to work checking
service which confinned their right to work (please see note l S)

Declaration

Signature
Date

Capacity

Page 83

b The revention of crime and disorder

c PubUcsafe

d) The prevention of public nuisance

e The rotection of children from barm

4/t ~ /av#,/4, ~ -

fZ611e111~ou .svc4
1
Y7~eal £

0#~

/j) c;,<U}I
o 4 Aer'? ()\) ~e

Checklist:
Please tick to indicate agreement

•
•
•

I have made or enclosed payment of the fee.
I have enclosed the plan of the premises.
I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and
others where applicable.

•

I have enclosed the consent fonn completed by the individual I wish to be
designated premises supervisor, if applicable.
I understand that I must now advertise my application.

•

Page 84

D
D
0

0

D

Rep 1
Dear Sir/Madam
Your Ref:WK/190034136
I am writing to object to the above Licence application on the grounds of the prevention of
public nuisance and the prevention of crime and disorder.
The Goswell Road block between Lever Street and Seward Street, on which applicant is
located, comprises seven or so shop front properties. If this application is approved four of
the properties would be selling alcohol late into the evening/ night
ie The late night shop on the corner of Lever St. / Goswell Road, Kennedy's restaurant,
Dominic's Cafe and The Old Ivy House pub on the corner of Goswell Road/ Seward Street.
This is a densely residential area and we already suffer crowded pavements, noise, pollution
and other issues on this Goswell Road block, extending around Seward Street and onto
Mount Mills behind these premises. In the summer this becomes unbearable for the local
residents and I'm afraid the local council has never properly addressed the problem with
these businesses despite complaints. The addition of another licensed premises would only
serve to exacerbate what is already a. serious problem and further facilitate drinkers moving
from one premises to another without interruption.

Rep2
Hello Licensing Team
I live on the XXXX:XXXXXXXX of XXXXXXXXXXX, XXXXXXXXX opposite the
premises above, who are applying for a licence. I had a letter put my door about this licence
and wish to object to it.
But first of all I do not understand why the licence application is for a cafe called Dominics.
There is currently no cafe there just an empty shop with a notice on the front. What sort of
cafe is it going to be?
However, whatever it is going to be I would like to object to the licensing hours applied for.
All four of the "licensing objectives" would be inappropriate at the chosen location.
For the following reasons:
The Triangle is a large estate, which has a lot of families with young children.
It is on a main road, with a small pavement outside, so customers will spill over onto the
payment.
There is a pub very close, whose customers already spill onto the payment outside at
weekends.
The noise element from the above up until 23 hours during the week and 22 hours on Sunday
will keep the children awake and also the people in the ground floor flats, including myself.
I OBJECT STRONGLY TO THIS LICENSING APPLICATION.

Page 85

Licensfng Act 2003 representatfon pro-forma
Should you wish to comment on the licence application please use this form to help you.
Please feel free to attach additional sheets.
You do not have to make any comment, and comments may be made in support of as well as
against the application, providing they refer to one or more of the licensing objectives {please
see the guidance notes for further advice).

a e H2 .

Premises Na

EC1V 7DT

Your Name:
Interest:

'Re .t ,· de ,rt:

(E.g. resident, business, TRA Chair, Councillor, solicitor)

Your~--,-i•~------Email: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __

Telephone: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __
Please comment on the licensing objectives below relevant to your concerns or observations,
you may also wish to include suggestions how your concerns could be addressed:
Public Nuisance

a{ re'ltlj
a.

f\

o ,, s. 1

·

Q" l a,.. ,A ..-+-..,,.,, t

w,

~ ~

1r-1 ;w

-{,·.rt 9-C41~
1-Rtf('r .:rr-PV1 I

Crime and Disorder

Cr,·p..R tJ,.,A
'-'J

fYIO ( C

j)ri':5

:t>1·r-ork- £V/II

be

,v

fl_\c,,~/ V f n/4~ r(','>,.(>,.

a,,J.. be1,,,~,·ovr

ur

Cf ~A

r1'£e.
w, //

C n I'-<

t'J ✓~lv-'::J

LBJ Licensing
2 6 NOV 2019

Page 86

I wish my identity to be kept anonymous:

<!.::}

No

We will treat representations as anonymous where there is a genuine reason to do so; if you
wish your name and address details to be withheld then please explain the reason:

Copies of this representation will be sent to the applicant, or their agenVsolicitor, including name
and address details (but other personal contact information such as telephone numbers and
email addresses will be removed) unless you have specifically requested anonymity. Copies of
this representation will be included in a report that will be available to the public and will be
published on the internet; however, the published on-line version of the report will have name

and address d e t a i l s .
Signature:

/

--~-~~~1------ Date:

:;) 0

I, J}'7
~,

Please ensure name and address details completed above
Return to:
Licensing Service
licensing Team, Islington Council, 3rd Floor, 222 1Jpper St, London, N1 1XR.
Or by email to: licensing@lslinqton.g ov.uk

l

'

Page 87

03 December 2019
Dear Resident,
I'm the Chef / Patron of Bocca in Cielo restaurant at 172 Goswell Road, London EC l V 7DT
formerly known as Dominics Cafe'.
Our aim is to create a seasonal Italian Restaurant serving beers and wine only to a sitting
Diners. We don't have a standing bar area, and so customers will only be allowed to consume
their drinks at the table with a meal. No alcohol will be allowed outside and we will not be
playing any music louder than background.
As per our application, our Kitchen will stop serving food at l 0pm giving customers the
opportunity to finish their meals by no later than the 11 pm applied for closing time.
Bocca in Cielo has already accepted the Metropolitan Police and Noise/Pollution team and
trading standards conditions below;
1. CCTV shall be installed, operated, and maintained, to function all times that the
premises is open for licensable activities. Said CCTV will comply with the following
criteria:
(a) The licen$ee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure that the system
is working properly and that the date and time are correct.
(b) A record of these checks, showing the date and name of the person checking, will be kept and
made available to the police or other authorised officer on request;
(c) The Police will be informed if the system will not be operating for longer than one day of
business for any reason;
( d) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a clear, full length
image of anyone entering;
( e) The system will provide full coverage of the interior of the premises and any exterior part of
the premises accessible to the public;
(f) The system will record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped;
(g) The system will be specified so as to operate satisfactorily regardless oflighting conditions;
(h) During opening hours, at least l member of staff on duty will be able to operate the system
sufficiently to allow Police or authorised Council officers to view footage on request;
(i) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days;

(j) Footage will be provided free of charge to the police or other authorised officers upon request
(subject to the Data Protection Act 1998) within 24 hours of any request.
2. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available upon request to the police or
an authorised officer, which will record:
(a) Any and all allegations of crime and/or disorder reported at the venue;
(b) Any and all complaints received by any party;
( c) Any faults in the CCTV system;

Page 88

(d) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service;
(e) Any and all ejections of patrons;
(f) Any and all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons;
(g) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol.
3. In the event that crime or serious disorder is, or appears to have been, committed on the
premises, the management will immediately ensure that:
(a) The police and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service, are called immediately;
(b) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to apprehend any
identified suspects pending the arrival of the police;
(c) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to preserve any identified
crime scene pending the arrival of the police.
4. The premises licence holder shall ensure that all sales staff receive appropriate training in
relation to managing conflict and health and safety of the public and staff. Training documents
shall be signed and dated and will be held in a suitable hard-copy log, to be made available to a
Police Officer or Council Officer upon request. Said records shall be retained for at least 12
months.
5. The licensee shall ensure that the management and staff prevent the admission of, and ensure
the prompt departure from the premises of, any and all drunk and or disorderly people or other
people displaying signs of other substance use, without causing any disorder.
6. A full restaurant menu of hot food (in the form of substantial meals that are freshly prepared on
the premises), and soft/non-intoxicating drinks will be offered at all times when the premises is
open for licensable activities.
7. The premises will operate the 'Challenge 25' proof of age scheme.
(a) All staff will be fully trained in its operation;
(b) Only suitable forms of photographic identification, such as passport or UK driving
licence, or holograph equipped 'PASS' scheme cards, will be accepted.
8. Save for an area of the premises not exceeding 15% of the total floor space, used by
persons waiting to dine at the premises; there shall be no vertical drinking permitted
anywhere on the premises at any time.
9. Noise or vibration must not emanate from the premises so as to cause a nuisance to nearby
properties.
I 0. Refuse such as bottles must be placed into receptacles outside the premises at times that
will minimise the disturbance to nearby properties
11. No vertical drinking.
12. Any music shall be restricted to ambient background levels of sound.

Page 89

13. If speakers are attached to the structure they shall be mounted on flexible fixings and
shall be positioned away from the ceiling.
14. In the event of a noise/nuisance complaint substantiated by an authorised officer, the
licensee shall take appropriate measures in order to prevent any recurrence.
15. Noise and/or Odour from any flue used for the dispersal of cooking smells serving the
building shall not cause nuisance to the occupants of any properties in the vicinity.
16. A maximum of 4 smokers shall be permitted at any one time outside the premises.
17. The outside frontage shall be swept and cleared of any smoking litter at the end of trade
each evening.
18. Any solid fuels used for cooking purposes shall be of the type approved on the schedule of
DEFRA for use in smoke free zones i.e. compliant with B$3841. Appropriate
documentation in relation to solid fuels in use shall be kept on site and available for
inspection by authorised officers.
19. The last sale of alcohol shall be 30 minutes before the stated closing time.
20. Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied on the premises otherwise than to persons purchasing
food there and for consumption by such a person as an ancillary to his/her meal.
21. Any mechanical shutters to the front of the premises shall be maintained so as not to
cause a noise nuisance when in operation to residential properties in close vicinity.
22. The licensee shall adopt a 'Challenge 25' policy and promote it through the prominent
display of posters.
23. The licensee shall put arrangements in place to ensure that before serving alcohol to
persons they believe to be less than 25, staff ask to see accredited proof of age: that is,
proof of age cards carrying the 'PASS' logo (and no others), a Passport, or UK Driving
Licence bearing the photograph and date of birth of the bearer.
24. The licensee shall ensure that staff are trained about age restricted products and ensure
that they sign to confirm that they have understood the training. The licensee shall keep
records of training and instructions given to staff, detailing the areas covered, and make
them available for inspection upon request by the licensing team, police or trading
standards.
25.The licensee shall require staff to note any refusals to sell to young people in a refusals
log. The refusals log shall be made available for inspection upon request by the licensing
team, police or trading standards.
With over 30 years' experience in the catering industry myself and my staff have developed a
strong understanding and approach of safety procedure where prevention of crime and
disorder, public nuisance and potentially harm to children always been our priority.

Page 90

With regards and respect to all local resident we feel Bocca in Cielo restaurant will only be a
great addition to an existing eclectic cuisine were Families could come and sample our finest
Italian food, if called myself and my staff will be delighted to give a tour and understanding
of our Restaurant aim to all interested parties.
Kind Regards
Marco Fabris
Bocca in Cielo

Page 91

Appendix 4
Suggested conditions of approval consistent with the operating schedule
1.

An appointed member of staff shall ensure there is a Fire Risk Assessment in place at the premises.

2.

All fire exits shall be signed and kept free from obstruction.

3.

Clear and legible notices will be displayed for customers to leave quietly and have regards to residents.

Suggested conditions from Islington's Noise and Pollution Service -Agreed
4.

Noise or vibration must not emanate from the premises so as to cause a nuisance to nearby properties.

5.

Refuse such as bottles must be placed into receptacles outside the premises at times that will minimise
the disturbance to nearby properties.

6.

No vertical drinking.

7.

Any music shall be restricted to ambient background levels of sound.

8.

If speakers are attached to the structure they shall be mounted on flexible fixings and shall be
positioned away from the ceiling.

9.

In the event of a noise/nuisance complaint substantiated by an authorised officer, the licensee shall take
appropriate measures in order to prevent any recurrence.

10.

Noise and/or Odour from any flue used for the dispersal of cooking smells serving the building shall not
cause nuisance to the occupants of any properties in the vicinity.

11.

A maximum of 4 smokers shall be permitted at any one time outside the premises.

12.

The outside frontage shall be swept and cleared of any smoking litter at the end of trade each evening.

13.

Any solid fuels used for cooking purposes shall be of the type approved on the schedule of DEFRA for use
in smoke free zones i.e. compliant with B53841. Appropriate documentation in relation to solid fuels in
use shall be kept on site and available for inspection by authorised officers.

14.

The last sale of alcohol shall be 30 minutes before the stated closing time.

15.

Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied on the premises otherwise than to persons purchasing food there and
for consumption by such a person as an ancillary to his/her meal.

16.

Any mechanical shutters to the front of the premises shall be maintained so as not to cause a noise
nuisance when in operation to residential properties in close vicinity.

Suggested conditions from the Metropolitan Police Service - Agreed
17.

CCTV shall be installed, operated, and maintained, to function all times that the premises is open for
licensable activities. Said CCTV will comply with the following criteria:

Page 92

(a) The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure that the system is
working properly and that the date and time are correct.
(b) A record of these checks, showing the date and name of the person checking, will be kept and made
available to the police or other authorised officer on request;
(c) The Police will be informed if the system will not be operating for longer than one day of business for
any reason;
(d) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a clear, full length
image of anyone entering;
(e) The system will provide full coverage of the interior of the premises and any exterior part of the
premises accessible to the public;
(f) The system will record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped;
(g) The system will be specified so as to operate satisfactorily regardless of lighting conditions;
(h) During opening hours, at least 1 member of staff on duty will be able to operate the system
sufficiently to allow Police or authorised Council officers to view footage on request;
(i) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days;

(j) Footage will be provided free of charge to the police or other authorised officers upon request
(subject to the Data Protection Act 1998) within 24 hours of any request.
18.

An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available upon request to the police or an
authorised officer, which will record:
(a) Any and all allegations of crime and/or disorder reported at the venue;
(b) Any and all complaints received by any party;
(c) Any faults in the CCTV system;
(d) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service;
(e) Any and all ejections of patrons;
(f) Any and all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons;
(g) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol.

19.

In the event that crime or serious disorder is, or appears to have been, committed on the premises, the
management will immediately ensure that:
(a) The police and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service, are called immediately;
(b) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to apprehend any identified
suspects pending the arrival of the police;
(c) As far as is safe and reasonable practicable, all measures will be taken to preserve any identified
crime scene pending the arrival of the police.

20.

The premises licence holder shall ensure that all sales staff receive appropriate training in relation to
managing conflict and health and safety of the public and staff. Training documents shall be signed and
dated and will be held in a suitable hard-copy log, to be made available to a Police Officer or Council
Officer upon request. Said records shall be retained for at least 12 months.

21.

The licensee shall ensure that the management and staff prevent the admission of, and ensure the
prompt departure from the premises of, any and all drunk and or disorderly people or other people
displaying signs of other substance use, without causing any disorder.

Page 93

22.

A full restaurant menu of hot food (in the form of substantial meals that are freshly prepared on the
premises), and soft/non-intoxicating drinks will be offered at all times when the premises is open for
licensable activities.

23.

The premises will operate the 'Challenge 25' proof of age scheme.
(a) All staff will be fully trained in its operation;
(b) Only suitable forms of photographic identification, such as passport or UK driving licence, or
holograph equipped 'PASS' scheme cards, will be accepted.

24.

Save for an area of the premises not exceeding 15% of the total floor space, used by persons waiting to
dine at the premises; there shall be no vertical drinking permitted anywhere on the premises at any
time.

Suggested conditions from Islington's Trading Standards Service - Agreed
25.

The licensee shall adopt a 'Challenge 25' policy and promote it through the prominent display of posters.

26.

The licensee shall put arrangements in place to ensure that before serving alcohol to persons they
believe to be less than 25, staff ask to see accredited proof of age: that is, proof of age cards carrying
the 'PASS' logo (and no others), a Passport, or UK Driving Licence bearing the photograph and date of
birth of the bearer.

27.

The licensee shall! ensure that staff are trained about age restricted products and ensure that they sign
to confirm that they have understood the training. The licensee shall keep records of training and
instructions given to staff, detailing the areas covered, and make them available for inspection upon
request by the licensing team, police or trading standards.

28.

The licensee shall require staff to note any refusals to sell to young people in a refusals log. The refusals
log shall be made available for inspection upon request by the licensing team, police or trading
standards.

Page 94

.c,
,J
11

!!!!•

C1
♦)

Page 95

Page 96

Agenda Item B4

t

1S LINGTON

Environment & Regeneration
Municipal Office, 222 Upper Street, N1 1XR
Report of: Service Director, Public Protection
Meeting of:

Date:

Ward(s):

Licensing Sub-Committee - A

17/12/2019

St. Mary's
Non-exempt

SUBJECT: PREMISES LICENCE VARIATION APPLICATION
RE: The Finest Bubble (HCA), 11 Shillingford Street,
London, N1 2DP.
1.

Synopsis
1.1

This is an application for the variation of a premise licence under the Licensing Act 2003.

1.2

The premises currently holds a licence allowing:


The sale by retail of alcohol, off supplies only, Mondays to Sundays from 09:00
until 17:00.

Note:
The licensed premises are not open to the public at any time.
1.3

The variation application is seeking to:


Vary the terminal hour for the sale of alcohol from 17:00 until 19:00 on Mondays
to Saturdays, no change proposed for Sundays;



Relocate the alcohol storage area within the premises to the area shown on the
amended layout plan; and



Vary Annex 2 premises licence conditions as detailed below:

Page 97

Condition 2, to be amended from:


All alcohol supplied under this licence must be sent directly to the customer.
The despatch of alcohol will be carried out via the local Post Office;
To:



All alcohol supplied under this licence must be sent directly to the customer.
The despatch of alcohol will be carried out via the local Post Office or
collection by courier.

Condition 3, to be removed:


There shall be no more than two despatches of alcohol a day;
To be replaced with:



All collections of alcohol from the premises must be undertaken in
accordance with the Product Collection Management Plan lodged with the
Licensing Authority. The Product Collection Management Plan shall include
rules and procedures to promote the Prevention of Public Nuisance
Licensing Objective.

Condition 4, to be amended from


No single unit (bottle) of alcohol sold under this licence must cost less than
£160.00;
To:


2.

No single unit (bottle) of alcohol sold under this licence shall cost less than
£30.

Relevant Representations
Licensing Authority

No

Metropolitan Police

No: Conditions agreed

Noise

No

Health and Safety

No

Trading Standards

No

Public Health

No

Safeguarding Children

No

London Fire Brigade

No

Local residents

Yes: One against and One in support.

Other bodies

No:

Page 98

3.

Background
3.1

4.

Brief licensing history:


The premises licence was granted to the current licensee before a licensing subcommittee on 25th March 2014;



22nd July 2019, a complaint alleging breaches of the premises licence and its
conditions was raised by a local resident;



8th October 2019, in furtherance of the investigation a warning/advisory letter was
sent to the licensee;



16th October 2019, the licensee attended the Council offices to discuss the matter
in association with their appointed licensing consultant. During these discussions
it became apparent that breaches of the premises licence had indeed taken place.
It was determined that a variation of the premises licence would therefore be
required so as to enable the business to operate as required;



24th October 2019, the premises licence variation was received.

Planning Implications
4.1

The Planning and Development section have the following comments to make in
relation to the above license application:
The property is located within Cross Street Conservation Area but it is not a listed
building.
It has an authorised residential use (Class C3). The comments from planning remain as
that for the initial premises license.
Providing that the primary use remains residential and the business activity is merely
incidental to that use, then no planning permission is required. If the use intensifies to
an extent that the residential use is no longer the primary use or harm is caused to
neighbouring amenity, then this may result in the need for planning permission.
There are no planning enforcement investigations currently ongoing.

5.

Recommendations
5.1

To determine the application for a variation of the premises licence under Section 34 of
the Licensing Act 2003.

5.2

These premises are located in the Angel and Upper Street Cumulative Impact Area
therefore the Licensing Committee will need to consider Licensing Policy 3, which states
that there is a presumption of refusal unless the Committee is satisfied that there will
be no adverse cumulative impact on the licensing objectives.

5.3

If the Committee grants the application it should be subject to:
i.

conditions prepared by the Licensing Officer which are consistent with the
Operating Schedule (see appendix 5); and

ii.

any conditions deemed appropriate by the Committee to promote the four
licensing objectives (see appendix 5).

Page 99

6.

Reasons for recommendations
6.1

The Council is required to consider this application in the light of all relevant
information, and if approval is given, it may attach such conditions as appropriate to
promote the licensing objectives.

Appendices:
Appendix 1:

application form;

Appendix 2:

product collection management plan;

Appendix 3:

current premises licence;

Appendix 4:

representations;

Appendix 5:

suggested conditions and map of premises location.

Background papers:
None.

Final report clearance:

Signed by:

5/12/19
Service Director – Public Protection

Report author: Licensing Service
Tel: 020 75027 3031
E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk

Page 100

Date

Appendix 1

Thomas & Thomas
Partners LLP
Application to vary a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003
PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are completing this form by hand please
write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional
sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I/We Zone 8 Media Limited
(Insert name(s) of applicant)
being the premises licence holder, apply to vary a premises licence under section 34 of the Licensing Act 2003
for the premises described in Part 1 below
Premises licence number
LN/000014706
Part 1 – Premises Details
Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
11 Shillingford Street

Post town

IPostcode

I London

I N1 2DP

Telephone number at premises (if any)
Non-domestic rateable value of premises

£UNRATED - BAND C

Part 2 – Applicant details
Daytime contact
telephone number
E-mail address (optional)
Current postal address if different
from premises address

Post town

app form

As above

I

I Postcode

1

Page 101

I

Part 3 - Variation
Please tick as appropriate
Do you want the proposed variation to have effect as soon as possible?

□

Yes

No

If not, from what date do you want the variation to take effect?

DD

MM

YYYY

Do you want the proposed variation to have effect in relation to the introduction of the late night levy? (Please
see guidance note 1)
Yes
No

□

Please describe briefly the nature of the proposed variation (Please see guidance note 2)
The application proposes to:
PART A – Licence Conditions
Vary Annex 2 licence conditions as follows:
i) Vary condition 2 as follows: "All alcohol supplied under this licence must be sent directly to the customer.
The despatch of alcohol will be carried out via the local Post Office or collection by courier".
ii) Replace condition 3 with a new condition as follows: “All collections of alcohol from the premises must be
undertaken in accordance with the Product Collection Management Plan lodged with the Licensing Authority.
The Product Collection Management Plan shall include rules and procedures to promote the Prevention of
Public Nuisance Licensing Objective”.
iii) Vary condition 4 as follows: “No single unit (bottle) of alcohol sold under this licence shall cost less than
£30".
PART B – Hours
Vary the terminal hour for licensable activities from 17:00 to 19:00 Monday to Saturday (no change on
Sundays).
PART C – Layout
Re-locate alcohol store area as shown on the plans appended to the application.
No other changes to the permitted hours, activities or conditions are sought or implied.
If your proposed variation would mean that 5,000 or more people are expected
to attend the premises at any one time, please state the number expected to
attend:

app form

2

Page 102

Part 4 Operating Schedule
Please complete those parts of the Operating Schedule below which would be subject to change if this application
to vary is successful.
Provision of regulated entertainment (Please see guidance note 3)

Please tick all that apply

a)

plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)

□

b)

films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)

□

c)

indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)

□

d)

boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)

□

e)

live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)

□

f)

recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)

□

g)

performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)

□

h)

anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)
(if ticking yes, fill in box H)

□

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)
Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)
In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

app form

3

Page 103

A
Plays
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
8)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the performance of a play take place indoors or
outdoors or both – please tick (please read guidance
note 4)

Finish

Indoors

□

Outdoors

□

Both

□

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read guidance note
6)

Thur

Fri

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
performance of plays at different times to those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read guidance note 7)

Sat

Sun

app form

4

Page 104

B
Films
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
8)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the exhibition of films take place indoors or
outdoors or both – please tick (please read guidance
note 4)

Finish

Indoors

□

Outdoors

□

Both

□

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please read guidance
note 6)

Thur

Fri

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the exhibition
of films at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list
(please read guidance note 7)

Sat

Sun

app form

5

Page 105

C
Indoor sporting events
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
8)
Day

Start

Please give further details (please read guidance note 5)

Finish

Mon

Tue

State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please read guidance
note 6)

Wed

Thur

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for indoor
sporting events at different times to those listed in the column on the left,
please list (please read guidance note 7)

Fri

Sat

Sun

app form

6

Page 106

D
Boxing or wrestling
entertainments
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
8)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment take place
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick (please read
guidance note 4)

Finish

Indoors

□

Outdoors

□

Both

□

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling entertainment (please
read guidance note 6)

Thur

Fri

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for boxing or
wrestling entertainment at different times to those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read guidance note 7)

Sat

Sun

app form

7

Page 107

E
Live music
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
8)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the performance of live music take place indoors or
outdoors or both – please tick (please read guidance
note 4)

Finish

Indoors

□

Outdoors

□

Both

□

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music (please read
guidance note 6)

Thur

Fri

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
performance of live music at different times to those listed in the column on
the left, please list (please read guidance note 7)

Sat

Sun

app form

8

Page 108

F
Recorded music
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
8)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the playing of recorded music take place indoors or
outdoors or both – please tick (please read guidance
note 4)

Finish

Indoors

□

Outdoors

□

Both

□

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music (please read
guidance note 6)

Thur

Fri

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the playing of
recorded music at different times to those listed in the column on the left,
please list (please read guidance note 7)

Sat

Sun

app form

9

Page 109

G
Performances of dance
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
8)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the performance of dance take place indoors or
outdoors or both – please tick (please read guidance
note 4)

Finish

Indoors

□

Outdoors

□

Both

□

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance (please read
guidance note 6)

Thur

Fri

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
performance of dance at different times to those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read guidance note 7)

Sat

Sun

app form

10

Page 110

H
Anything of a similar
description to that falling
within (e), (f) or (g)
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
8)

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be providing

Day

Will this entertainment take place indoors or outdoors
or both – please tick (please read guidance note 4)

Mon

Start

Finish

Indoors
Outdoors
Both

Tue

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5)

Wed

Thur

State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar description to
that falling within (e), (f) or (g) (please read guidance note 6)

Fri

Sat

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
entertainment of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g) at
different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list (please
read guidance note 7)

Sun

app form

11

Page 111

□
□

□

I
Late night refreshment
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
8)
Day
Mon

Start

Will the provision of late night refreshment take place
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick (please read
guidance note 4)

Finish

Indoors

□

Outdoors

□

Both

□

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night refreshment
(please read guidance note 6)

Thur

Fri

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
provision of late night refreshment at different times, to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7)

Sat

Sun

app form

12

Page 112

J
Supply of alcohol
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
8)
Day

Start

Finish

Mon

0900

1900

Tue

0900

1900

Wed

0900

1900

Thur

0900

1900

Fri

0900

1900

Sat

0900

1900

Sun

0900

1700

Will the supply of alcohol be for consumption – please
tick (please read guidance note 9)

On the
premises

□

Off the
premises

~

Both

□

State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please read guidance
note 6)

Non-standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the supply
of alcohol at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please
-list (please read guidance note 7)

K
Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters ancillary to
the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children (please read guidance note 10).
None

app form

13

Page 113

L
Hours premises are open to
the public
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
8)
Day

Start

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 6)

Finish

Mon

Tue

Wed

Thur

Non standard timings. Where you intend the premises to be open to the
public at different times from those listed in the column on the left, please
list (please read guidance note 7)

Fri

Sat

Sun

Please identify those conditions currently imposed on the licence which you believe could be removed as a
consequence of the proposed variation you are seeking.

Vary Annex 2 licence conditions as follows:
i) Vary condition 2 as follows: "All alcohol supplied under this licence must be sent directly to the customer.
The despatch of alcohol will be carried out via the local Post Office or collection by courier".
ii) Replace condition 3 with a new condition as follows: “All collections of alcohol from the premises must be
undertaken in accordance with the Product Collection Management Plan lodged with the Licensing Authority.
The Product Collection Management Plan shall include rules and procedures to promote the Prevention of
Public Nuisance Licensing Objective”.
iii) Vary condition 4 as follows: “No single unit (bottle) of alcohol sold under this licence shall cost less than
£30".

app form

14

Page 114

Please tick as appropriate

•
•

I have enclosed the premises licence

[SJ

I have enclosed the relevant part of the premises licence

□

If you have not ticked one of these boxes, please fill in reasons for not including the licence or part of it below
Reasons why I have not enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of premises licence.

M
Describe any additional steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives as a result of the
proposed variation:
a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note 11)
With the exception of those that it is proposed be removed or amended (as set out in the application
description) the conditions attached to the premises licence will continue to have effect should the application
be granted.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder
Please refer to box a) above.

app form

15

Page 115

c) Public safety
Please refer to box a) above.

d) The prevention of public nuisance
Please refer to box a) above.

e) The protection of children from harm
Please refer to box a) above.

Checklist:
Please tick to indicate agreement

•
•

I have made or enclosed payment of the fee; or
I have not made or enclosed payment of the fee because this application has been made in
relation to the introduction of the late night levy.

•

I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and others where
applicable. Electronic Submission - LA to serve RA's

•
•
•

I understand that I must now advertise my application.
I have enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of it or explanation.
I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will be rejected.

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY
CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.
Part 5 – Signatures (please read guidance note 12)
Signature of applicant (the current premises licence holder) or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised
agent (please read guidance note 13). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.

app form

16

Page 116

Signature

Thomas and Thomas

Date

24/10/2019

Capacity

Thomas & Thomas Partners LLP as solicitors on behalf of the applicant

Where the premises licence is jointly held, signature of 2nd applicant (the current premises licence holder) or
2nd applicant’s solicitor or other authorised agent (please read guidance note 14). If signing on behalf of the
applicant, please state in what capacity.
Signature
Date
Capacity
Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated with this application
(please read guidance note 15)
Thomas & Thomas Partners LLp
38a Monmouth Street

Post town

London

Telephone number (if any)

Post code

WC2H 9EP

020 7042 0410

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional)

Notes for Guidance
This application cannot be used to vary the licence so as to extend the period for which the licence has effect or to vary
substantially the premises to which it relates. If you wish to make that type of change to the premises licence, you should make a
new premises licence application under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.
1.
2.

3.

You do not have to pay a fee if the only purpose of the variation for which you are applying is to avoid becoming liable for
the late night levy
Describe the premises. For example, the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which
could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to
provide a place of consumption of these off-supplies of alcohol, you must include a description of where the place will be
and its proximity to the premises.
In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:
•
Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience
does not exceed 500.
•
Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the
screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides by
age classification ratings.
•
Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided
that the audience does not exceed 1000.
•
Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman
wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not
exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or

app form

17

Page 117

•

•

wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an
indoor sporting event.
Live music: no licence permission is required for:
o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises.
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to
sell alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not
licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village
hall, community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to
sell alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for
the performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential
premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does
not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from:
(i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.
Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell
alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of
(i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed
500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local
authority concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

•

4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

10.

11.
12.
13.
14.
15.

Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience
does not exceed 500. However, a performance which amounts to adult entertainment remains licensable.
•
Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, with no limit on audience
size for:
o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the entertainment is
provided by or on behalf of the local authority;
o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider;
o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is provided by
or on behalf of the school proprietor; and
o any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) taking place at a travelling
circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience,
and (b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 consecutive
days.
Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as appropriate (indoors may include a tent).
For example state type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but
not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.
For example (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.
For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.
Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16.00) and only give details for the days of the week when you intend the
premises to be used for the activity.
If you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises, please tick ‘on the premises’. If you wish people to be
able to purchase alcohol to consume away from the premises, please tick ‘off the premises’. If you wish people to be able
to do both, please tick ‘both’.
Please give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may
give rise to concern in respect of children regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for
example (but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups or the presence of gaming machines.
Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.
The application form must be signed.
An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they have actual authority to
do so.
Where there is more than one applicant, each of the applicants or their respective agents must sign the application form.
This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

app form

18

Page 118

Appendix 2

THE FINES T B IU BBLE
P RES rlGE GHAMl'i\G:--l'E S

11 Shillingford Street, London Nl 2DP
Product Collection Management Plan
1. Introduction

11 Shillingford Street is a licensed premises regulated by the Licensi ng Act 2003. All
members of the Fi nest Bubble team have a duty to promote the four Licensing Objectives:
1.

The prevention of crime and disorder.

2.

The prevention of public nuisance.

3.

Public safety.

4.

The protection of chi ldren from harm.

It is particularly important that our business does not disturb local residents. The primary
objective of this Product Collection Management Plan is to ensure that the Finest Bubble
promotes the Prevention of Public Nuisance Licensing Objective.
This includes a commitment from our team and couriers to undertake their duties
respectfully and sympathetically alongside local residents.

Particu lar care shou ld be

taken when Finest Bubble products are collected from 11 Shillingford Street.
2. Rule and Procedures

(a) Van drivers must be instructed to park outside the garage driveway forming part
of 11 Shillingford Street property. This area is located away from and out of sight
of the nearest neighbou ring residential property (see Appendix 1).
(b) Bicycle and scooter riders must be instructed to pull up inside the garage driveway
forming part of the 11 Shillingford Street property. This area is located away from
and out of sight of the nearest neighbouring residential property (see Appendix 1).
(c) Riders and drivers must be instructed to turn off engines (if applicable) after they
have parked and not to leave engines running un necessari ly.
(d) Riders and drivers must be instructed not to slam doors and to park their vehicle
quietly .
(e) Riders and drivers must be instructed to walk quietly and directly to the entrance
of 11 Shillingford Street to collect their product.
(f) Riders and drivers must be instructed to avoid talking loud ly on radios or mobile
phones when outside 11 Shill ingford Street.

Page 119

TH E FINE:ST BUBB LE
PR ESTIGE GHAMP<\GNES

(g) The Finest Bubble team members must ensure that the front door to 11
Shillingford Street is open and closed quietly, without extended or loud
conversations with courier riders or drivers.
(h) Product collections must only take place within the permitted times.
(i) Where possible, product collections should be consolidated to reduce the number
of collections taking place each day.
(j) Where possible, courier companies shall be instructed to send push-bicycles or
electric vehicles only.
3. Ongoing compliance checking and training
All team members and courier companies must read, understand and commit to
compliance with this Product Collection Management Plan as part of induction training
and ongoing refresher training, to be undertaken at least every six months.
Courier companies should be reminded of the rules and procedures by being sent a copy
of the Product Collection Management Plan regularly. In addition, a reminder to comply
with the rules and procedures shall be included in every individual collection order
instructions.
The Finest Bubble team members shall regularly undertake spot checks on riders and
drivers to ensure the Product Collection Management Plan rules and procedures are
being followed.
Where necessary, any breaches shall be reported directly to courier company
management. Recurring breaches shall result in individual riders or courier drivers being
banned from collecting products from 11 Shillingford Street. Alternatively, contracts with
courier companies shall be terminated in the event of prolonged recurring breaches.
The Finest Bubble team members should also regularly and politely remind courier riders
and drivers to undertake their duties respectfully and sympathetically to avoid disturbing
local residents.

Page 120

T HE FINEST BUBBLE
PR I:.S _:-' JGI

CIIA\- I \G"l'E S

Appendix 1 – Area for Courier Vehicles

Page 121

PREMISES LICENCE

t

Appendix 3

1S LINGTON

LICENSING ACT 2003
Premises licence number

LN/14706-250314

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
ZONE8MEDIA
11 SHILLINGFORD STREET
Post town
I London
Telephone number
I 07973 654 097
Where the licence is time limited the dates
Not Aoolicable

I Post code

I N1 2DP

f

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

•

The sale by retail of alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activitres

•

The sale by retail of alcohol:
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday

09:00
09:00
09:00
09:00
09:00
09:00
09:00

to
to
to
to
to
to
to

17:00
17~00
t7:00 .r
17:00

t7:00
17:00
11:00,.

Gaming Machine Provision:
Not permitted
The opening hours of the premises:
Not applicable
Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off
supplies
Off SUPPiies
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and e-mail (where relevant) of holder of
premises licence
Zone 8 Media Ltd
11 Shillingford Street
London
N12DP
nick@proofofdeliverv.co.uk
Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where
applicable)
4984998

Page 122

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the
premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol
Nick B k r

d issuing authority of personal licence held by designated
where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol
Islington Council
Public Protection Division
222 Upper Street
London N1 1XR
Tel: 020 7527 3031
Email: licensing@islington.gov.uk

ommercial)

3(/J ~
Date of Issue

Page 123

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions

1.

No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence:
a)

at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the
premises licence, or

b)

at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal
licence or his personal licence is suspended.

2.

Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by
a person who holds a personal licence.

3.

The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an
age verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol.
The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be
under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to
produce on request, before being served alcohol, identificatio,p oearihg their
photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

1.

All sales of alcohol authorised under this licence must be completed remotely by
way of the internet. No customer access is authorised at this address.

2.

All alcohol supplied under this licence must be sent directly to the customer. The
despatch of alcohol will be carried out via the local Post Office.

3.

There shall be no more than two despatches of alcoq_ol a day.

4.

No single unit (bottle) of alcohol sold und~ this licenc~must cost less than
£160.00.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

None
Annex 4 - Plans

Reference Number: 14706-150314-Plan

Page 124

·t 1SLINGTON
Premises Licence Summary
Licensing Act 2003
Premises licence number

LN/14706-250314

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
ZONE 8MEDIA
11 SHILLINGFORD STREET

I Postcode

Post town
I London
Telephone number
I 07973 654 097

I N1

2DP

Where the licence is time limited the dates
Not A licable
Licensable activities authorised by the licence

•

The sale by retail of alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out.of licensable activities

•

The sale by retail of alcohol:
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday

09:00
09:00
09:00
09:00
09:00
09:00
09:00

to
to
to
to
to
to
to

17:00
17:00
17:00
17:00,,_
17:00
17:00
1-7:00

I

Gaming Machine Provision:
Not permitted
The opening hours of the premises:
Not a licable
Where the licence authorJses supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off
supplies
Off suoolies
Name, {registered) address, telephone number and e-mail {where relevant) of holder of
premises licence
Zone 8 Media Ltd
11 Shillingford Street
London
N12DP
nick @proofofdeliverv.co.uk
Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number {where
applicable)
4984998

Page 125

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the
supply of alcohol
Nick Baker
State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited
No restrictions
Islington Council
Public Protection Division
222 Upper Street
London N1 1XR
Tel: 020 7527 3031
Email: licensing@islington.gov.uk

Page 126

Appendix 4
Rep 1

-

15th November 2019

Dear Licensing Service
LICENCING ACT 2003 – PREMISES LICIENCE APPLICATION VARIATION
RE: THE FINEST BUBBLE (HCA), 11 SHILLINGFORD STREET, ISLINGTON, LONDON, N1 2DP
I am writing to object about the above proposal and to request that Licensing sub-committee
reject the proposed variation of the licence for the above premises, and also implement
effective monitoring to ensure that original licensing conditions for this premises, granted in
March 2014, are strictly enforced.
Summary
i.

When the licence for this premises was granted in March 2014, the sub committee
understood that there was the need impose specific conditions to avoid public nuisance
and public safety issues in a residential area. The proposed variation will remove these
conditions and create significant public nuisance and public safety issues.

ii.

This is a residential area, with an infant school opposite the licenced premises, it has a
narrow road – made narrower with on-street parking. The sub committee must be made
aware that application is very misleading, the proposed variations are impractical, and if
implemented would cause further public nuisance and public safety issues.

iii.

This licenced premises has been in continuous breach of its original licencing conditions.
This raises serious question about trust for the Licensing Sub Committee. The information
in this application is misleading and given historical behaviour it is unlikely that the
licensed premises will adhere to any new conditions.

iv.

The sub committee were mislead by this business when the licence was originally
granted. The original proposal portrayed the business as a low-volume high-end supplier
of alcohol that could be assimilated in a residential area. Indeed, at its meeting in March
2014 the licencing sub committee specifically referred to this fact as a reason not to
automatically refuse the licence on the basis of adding to cumulative adverse impact.
This was misleading, according to its website this business has never operated in this way.
The real nature of the business is that it is a high volume business, requiring constant
courier despatch at hours beyond those in the proposed variation. In addition, it also
requires regularly delivery of stock. A formal review of the original licence should be
undertaken under section 51 of the 2003 Licencing Act.

Page 1 of 8

Page 127

The rational for the objection
I have been resident at
since December 2015. Over that time,
I have noticed an increasing level of deliveries and courier despatches occurring to and from
11 Shillingford Street. Recently this has grown to high volumes particularly at the weekends,
holidays and festive periods.
Shillingford Street is a residential area with an infant school. It is a narrow street, with parking
allowed on one side, and becomes easily blocked. In some places the pedestrian pavement
is not sufficiently wide or level for people pushing prams or using walking aids – this requires
them to move temporarily into the road. There is a rear access to the infant school which on
occasion in the summer is used by pupils as a route to St Mary’s Church park.
The increased level of traffic to and from these licenced premises, the idling engines, and the
noisy interactions, have now reached a point when it has not only become a significant public
nuisance, but poses a public safety risk – and with its close proximity to the infant school a
potential risk to the safety of children.
Indeed, this business cannot be considered as a small home-based operation but is a sizeable
on-line alcohol sales business. It has no place in a residential area – and given the high volume
of sales, it has certainly added to the adverse cumulative impact in this area.
Continuous breaches to the current licence conditions
Until I raised a complaint, I did not realise that the current licence conditions were very
specific in the requirement to solely use the post office, twice a day, for the despatch of
alcohol. Also for the sale of alcohol to only take place Mondays to Sundays between 09.00
and 17.00.
Indeed, when granting the licence, the licencing sub committee were very conscious of the
residential setting and considered that despatch twice a day from the post office would not
impact adversely on licensing objectives.
This business has not complied with these licencing conditions in the 4 years I have been
resident at my address. There have always been couriers or taxi’s arriving to pick up orders
and these orders have frequently occurred outside of the permitted hours. It also has stock
delivered regularly by large vans.
These vehicles leave their engines idling whilst the collection is made, and the drivers are
noisy when waiting or interacting with the owner. This noise disturbs the amenity of the
residential area. The high frequency of traffic in a residential area poses a public safety risk especially in such close proximity to the infant school. Furthermore, many of these vehicles
park outside the homes of other residents often blocking the path or access to their homes.

Page2
Page
2 of8
of 8

Page 128

-

Parking outside a
residence is not just a public nuisance in terms of noise or
access to your home – it’s also a public nuisance as it generates a feeling intimidation on your
own door-step by helmeted motorcycle riders.
The licence granted to this premises states that it should cease sales at 5.30pm each day.
However, this obligation is not observed. Many of the collections occur in the early evening
and at night after the permitted hours. Indeed, the Finest Bubble website has for years
informed customers that sales can be obtained up until 9.00pm each day. This level of traffic
at night and noise from idling engines elevates the public nuisance problem in a residential
area.
Furthermore, the original conditions state that no single unit (bottle) of alcohol should be sold
under £160 price. Again, the Finest Bubble website has for years been offering a range of
bottles for much less than the minimum price set out in the original conditions.
Moreover, even after discussions with licencing officers following my earlier complaints and
enforcement of the licencing conditions – this licenced premises has continued to operate in
breach of all of its licencing conditions.
Overall, this licenced premises has been flagrantly ignoring the licence conditions and has
been operating in breach of these conditions for years. This has created a significant public
nuisance, a public safety risk – and with its close proximity to the infant school a potential risk
to the safety of children. As a consequence, this variation should be rejected and the current
conditions regarding hours of sale, despatch twice a day by the post office, and the minimum
price, should be strictly enforced.
Objection to the variation to the licence
Given the serious points raised previously, extending the licensing hours for this premises,
and allowing despatch by courier, will only exacerbate the public nuisance and public safety
issues in this residential area. Indeed, it illustrates that the business has never operated as
previously portrayed to the licencing sub committee. It has always operated at a high level of
volume, breaching the earlier licencing conditions, and is of a scale that has no place in a
residential setting.
Furthermore, the reduction in the minimum price of a single bottle of alcohol from £160 to
only £30 - merely emphasises that it has never been a a high end low volume business – but
has always been a low priced high-volume business. This has created an adverse cumulative
impact in this area – and under the current policy of the council this variation should be
refused. Furthermore, as the business is illustrating with this application that it is materially
different to how it has originally portrayed, a formal review of the original licence should be
undertaken under section 51 of the 2003 Licencing Act.

Page 3 of8
of 8

Page 129

There are also specific issues with the proposed method of operating that have accompanied
the proposed variation:
i.

As this licenced premises has not adhered to the method of operating that it proposed
in its original licence application (which became conditions of the licence) it cannot be
trusted to adhere to new conditions.

ii.

The product collection plan refers to a ‘garage driveway’ including a photo of this
driveway highlighted by a blue line. It is important to draw to the attention of the subcommittee that this driveway is only 1 meter in length – and will not be able to
accommodate motorcycles, taxis or deliver vans without blocking the pavement.
Indeed, if this policy were applied it would become an immediate public safety issue
– as pedestrians would be forced onto the road.

iii.

The product collection plan mentions that this driveway is located out of sight of the
nearest neighbouring property. What the picture fails to show is that just out of shot
is a small block of flats with their entrance only 5 meters away. This merely moves the
problem from one side
to the other side of the licenced
premises.

iv.

If van-drivers parked in front of this driveway it would also block the road. What the
picture also fails to show is that immediately after this driveway is a designated onstreet parking area – and the road at that point can only accommodate one vehicle.
Therefore, any van parked in front of the licenced premises driveway would
immediately block the road. This is not just a public nuisance but also a public safety
issue.
Therefore, this condition would either cause an immediate public safety issue or
would never be observed - with vans, bikes and taxis continuing to park outside of
neighbouring houses creating a public nuisance.

v.

The points in the product collection plan about instructing drivers to turn off engines
and be quiet are impossible for the licence premises to enforce with their couriers,
taxis and delivery vans. Unless they are already waiting in the street for every
collection or delivery – which will never happen, this is an impractical approach that
cannot be enforced by the licenced premises. Indeed, as they have not adhered to
conditions before it is difficult to imagine something as problematic as this to
implement ever happening.

vi.

The new plans for storage make no impact on removing the public nuisance of public
safety issues. However, they do highlight that the business has a significantly
increased need for a larger storage space and re-emphasise that this business has
increased in scale since inception, operates for longer hours, and has a materially
changed its approach from high priced low volume business – to a lower priced high
volume business. This adversely adds to the cumulative impact in this area and is
counter to licencing policy.
Page4
Page
4 of8
of 8

Page 130

Overall, the product collection plans provide very misleading information to the subcommittee – raising further questions about trust. Most important, the plans are not only
impractical but would potentially exacerbate the problems with public nuisance and public
safety. Finally, it also illustrates that this business is materially different to how it was
originally portrayed and adversely adds to the cumulative impact in this area. A formal review
of the original licence should be undertaken under section 51 of the 2003 Licencing Act.
Other points
I have made previous complaints about the public nuisance and public safety risks of this
licenced premises. I am disappointed that this business has been allowed to continuously
breach licencing conditions without any legal enforcement action that has taking place.
I have also requested that the licence should be formally reviewed. I am disappointed that
this has not been followed up under section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Appendix 1
Photograph showing a van parked in the designated parking area and the garage to the
licenced premises 11, Shillingford Street. This clearly depicts how a taxi or van parked
opposite the garage would block the road.

Page 5 of 8

Page 131

Photograph of driveway show access to other flats that would be blocked (different angle to
photo in application) – but also clearly showing that the length of this space is only 1 meter

-----

__

-

Page 6 of 8

Page 132

Appendix 2
Extract of email correspondence with Islington Licensing Services
1)

Original complaint sent to licensing services 13th November 2018

Dear Sir
I have recently discovered that my neighbour operates an on-line business to sell champagne (and potentially other alcohol)
from his home. Please could you inform me if there are up to date licences for this activity. I am concerned about the amount
of pick-ups and deliveries - and also worried about the safety issues of having a premises trading and storing alcohol in
quantity next door.
Also - what options do I have to complain about this activity happening in a residential property?
The person and address is below
Address:
Name:

11, Shillingford Street, Islington London N1 2DP

Yours Sincerely

2)

Original complaint sent to licensing services 22nd July 2019

Dear Mr Whitton
Following my enquiry last year, I am writing to complain about the public nuisance caused by the licensed premises located
at 11 Shillingford Street Islington N1 2DP (The Finest Bubble). This premises is located in a residential street opposite an
infant school and sells alcohol on-line to the market. The business has a high frequency of collections mostly by motorbike
courier and taxi often late into the night. It also has stock delivered regularly by large vans.
These vehicles leave their engines idling whilst the collection is made and the drivers are sometimes noisy when interacting
with the owner. This noise disturbs the amenity of the residential area. The high frequency of traffic in a residential area
poses a pubic safety risk - especially in such close proximity to the infant school. Furthermore many of these vehicles park
outside the homes of other residents often blocking the path or access to their homes.
Although the provision of an alcohol licence to a residential property in such an area may have been tolerable when this
business first started - it now operates on a large scale (see accounts filed at Company House ) and should seek alternative
premises in a location much better suited to the scale and nature of the business. Indeed, it has doubled its stock holding of
alcohol in the past couple of years to well over half a million pounds.
The licence grated to this premises states that it should cease sales at 5.30pm each day. However this obligation is not
observed - and indeed the Finest Bubble web-site informs customer that sales can be obtained up until 9.00pm each day.
https://thefinestbubble.com
I would like the licence and licence times for this business reviewed formally by the Council. In the meantime (whilst this
takes place) I would like the Council to enforce the trading times on the licence granted (and the website changed
appropriately and the business requested to take more care with deliveries.

Page 7 of 8

Page 133

Yours faithfully

Other complaints – numerous emails to licensing services asking for action and informing licensing services that the business
remains in breach of its licensing conditions.

Page 8 of 8

Page 134

Rep 2
Supporting
Dear Sirs
We live two doors away and have been aware the applicant has built up a great business from
scratch.
We can see no reason why the requested License revisions would cause any nuisance since
Shillingford Street isn’t a typical residential street, there are just four properties on this side of the
street and there is a lot of space between all the properties so if couriers park outside their property it
doesn’t interfere or cause a nuisance to the other properties. There are several businesses at the
Cross Street end of Shillingford Street that operate out of the shops with deliveries coming and going
and this doesn’t cause any issues. Along with the Primary school’s kitchen entrance mid way along
Shillingford Street, all these comings and goings happen with that typical low level noise you get
everywhere in London.
Yours sincerely

.

Page 135

Appendix 5

Suggested conditions of approval consistent with the operating schedule
1.

All alcohol supplied under this licence must be sent directly to the customer. The despatch of
alcohol will be carried out via the local Post Office or collection by courier.
(in place of current condition 2)

2.

All collections of alcohol from the premises must be undertaken in accordance with the
Product Collection Management Plan lodged with the Licensing Authority. The Product
Collection Management Plan shall include rules and procedures to promote the Prevention of
Public Nuisance Licensing Objective.
(in place of current condition 3)

3.

No single unit (bottle) of alcohol sold under this licence shall cost less than £30.
(in place of current condition4)

Conditions agreed with the Metropolitan Police
4.

The premises licence holder shall ensure that any third party deliver/courier company is
instructed to comply with the following:
a. Any refusals will be logged by the delivery driver. Records of all refusals will be
obtained from the delivery company and provided to the relevant authorities upon
request; and
b. Couriers will be trained on relevant aspects of the Licensing Act 2003 including
underage sales, sales to a person who is drunk, obtaining alcohol for a child or a
person who is drunk and delivering alcohol to someone under the age of 18.

5.

Any person or automated system taking an order for the supply of alcohol on behalf of the
premises licence holder will inform customers that proof of age by way of photographic driving
licence, passport or a form of identification with the PASS hologram may be required before
alcohol is supplied in accordance with the Challenge 25 age verification scheme.

Page 136

--~

/)

e,

Page 137

St Mar,''s C ofE
Primary School

;;

fOWU:RROAO

'li:t 10

Hall

.,

This page is intentionally left blank

